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778,005 0.16
489,265,551
100.00
54,338
2018

- 71,959,728

7.15 514,631,925 6.81 490,043,556 100.16

2018

FNMA FN30 TBA 03.5000 10/01/2048

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.5000 09/01/2048

FNMA FN30 TBA 04.0000 10/01/2048

FNMA FN30 TBA 05.5000 09/01/2048

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.0000 09/01/2048

CAS 2016-C03 2M2 07.9648 10/25/2028

GNR 2016-H23 NI 10 01.9410 10/20/2066

CAS 2015-C03 1M2 07.0648 07/25/2025

MSC 2007-Hgll B 05.5380 02/12/2044

10

CAS 2016-C02 1B 14.3148 09/25/2028

2018 31

2018

2018

24.39
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6.54 726
573,494 63,692
2009 6.56 729
8.17 907
1,217,542 135,220
2010 8.22 913
8.45 938
1,418,003 157,483
2011 8.51 945
7.70 855
1,210,337 134,420
2012 7.76 862
7.98 886
1,134,757 126,026
2013 8.05 894
8.04 893
1,335,204 148,288
2014 8.11 901
10 7.51 834
1,179,159 130,957
2015 7.58 842
11 6.64 737
587,539 65,252
(2016 ) 6.72 746
12 6.88 764
561,947 62,410
(2017 ) 6.97 774
13 6.94 771
508,057 56,425
2018 7.03 781
6.87 763
2017 525,666 58,380
6.96 773
6.89 765
10 518,219 57,553
6.99 776
6.87 763
11 514,299 57,118
6.97 774
6.87 763
12 510,595 56,707
6.96 773
6.97 774
2018 520,937 57,855
7.06 784
6.93 770
515,802 57,285
7.03 781
6.91 767
506,320 56,232
7.01 779
6.94 771
508,057 56,425
7.03 781
6.83 759
493,809 54,842
6.92 769
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6.71 745
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6.81 756
0.684 75.97
0.624 69.30
0.684 75.97
0.624 69.30
0.670 74.41
0.614 68.19
0.510 56.64
0.464 51.53
0.464 51.53
0.416 46.20
0.444 49.31
0.396 43.98
0.435 48.31
10
0.387 42.98
0.408 45.31
11
0.360 39.98
0.408 45.31
12
0.360 39.98
0.408 45.31
13
0.360 39.98
0.034 3.78
2017
0.030 3.33
0.034 3.78
10
0.030 3.33
0.034 3.78
11
0.030 3.33
0.034 3.78
12
0.030 3.33
0.034 3.78
2018
0.030 3.33
0.034 3.78
0.030 3.33
0.034 3.78
0.030 3.33
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36.83 36.11

12.19 11.48

2.73 3.28
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10 1.19 1.79
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SO0SE 2006E 2007% 20088 200SE 20102 2011E 20128 20138 20142 20152 20165 20178
W8 10R 08 10 1OR WH 108 08 10R WA 10 0B 10R
18,570 582,400 1,112,910
2008 (18,570) (582,400) (1,112,910)
2009 30 ’ ’ T
2000 50,730 136,640 1,027,000
50,730 136,640 1,027,000
2010 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
61,110 136,840 951,270
2010 (61,110) (136,840) (951,270)
2011 30 ’ ’ ’
p011 53,440 168,310 836,400
53,440 168,310 836,400
2012 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2012 35,020 167,200 704,220
35,020 167,200 704,220
2013 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
15,900 94,550 625,570
2013 (15,900) (94,550) (625,570)
2014 30 ’ ’ ’
10
1,650 116,400 510,820
2014
1,650 116,400 510,820
2015 30

47/270



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

11
6,530 60,100 457,250
(2015 (6,530) (60,100) (457,250)
2016 30 ’ ’ ’
12
3,990 37,850 423,390
(2016 (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30 ’ ’ ’
13
so17 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
(3,132,640) (168,260) (3,387,770)
2018 30
2008 45,311,780 6,395,600 86,344,640
45,311,780 6,395,600 86,344,640
2009 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2000 110,204,960 49,370,961 147,178,639
110,204,960 49,370,961 147,178,639
2010 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2010 74,801,470 56,329,982 165,650,127
74,801,470 56,329,982 165,650,127
2011 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
so11 51,130,390 61,583,745 155,196,772
51,130,390 61,583,745 155,196,772
2012 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
201 39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
(39,869, 440) (54,745,820) (140,320,392)
2013 30
2013 49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
2014 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
2014 42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
2015 30
11
2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
2016 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
12
2016 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
(7,588,070) (14,399,919) (80,202,786)
2017 30
13
2017 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
(4,407,620) (15,701,116) (68,909,290)

2018

30
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2018 30 2017 30
3,4,8,12 696,360,850 77,337,836 964,034,461 107,065,667
8 95,109,773 10,562,891 272,725,260 30,288,867
6 1,678,258 186,387 1,216,036 135,053

4 11,895 1,321
4 50,264 5,582
5,775,963 641,478 7,123,169 791,099
3.8 826,016 91,737 5,390,427 598,661
799,762,755 88,821,652  1,250,539,617 138,884,930
3,4,8,12 124,993,815 13,881,813 336,806,662 37,405,748
8,11 162,327,549 18,028,098 347,886,950 38,636,325
674,978 74,963 560,500 62,249
4 25,579 2,841

4 31,441 3,492
9 1,341,065 148,939 1,507,381 167,410
3 68,083 7,561
9 96,539 10,722 90,481 10,049
8 1,639,844 182,121 1,378,723 153,121
9 327,983 36,426 409,514 45,481
291,433,214 32,366,573 688,733,873 76,490,784
8 508,329,541 56,455,079 561,805, 744 62,394,146
508,056,570 56,424,763 561,946,708 62,409,801
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2018 30 2017 30
3 31,811,065 3,532,937 37,714,897 4,188,616
26,882 2,986
49,430 5,490 (91,860) (10,202)
10 9,410,919 1,045,177 23,371,880 2,595,681
41,271,414 4,583,603 61,021,799 6,777,081
9 8,400,486 932,958 9,157,018 1,016,978
9 177,319 19,693 153,468 17,044
9 50,229 5,578 6,500 722
9 392,761 43,620 393,021 43,649
9 83,443 9,267 82,710 9,186
9 90,754 10,079 84,648 9,401
9 107,061 11,890 142,355 15,810
9,302,053 1,033,086 10,019,720 1,112,790
31,969,361 3,550,517 51,002,079 5,664,291
7 (27,287,591) (3,030,560) (30,298,103) (3,364,907)
4,681,770 519,957 20,703,976 2,299,384
3 (22,553) (2,505) (2,743) (305)
4,659,217 517,453 20,701,233 2,299,079
4,659,217 517,453 20,701,233 2,299,079
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2018 30 2017 30
561,805,744 62,394,146 592,829,198 65,839,611
4,659,217 517,453 20,701,233 2,299,079

82,841 9,200
10,000 1,111
30,597,378 3,398,145 51,632,540 5,734,310
21,686,005 2,408,448 26,313 2,922
(4,974,496) (552, 468)
6 (109, 335,489) (12,142,799) (98,159,397)  (10,901,583)
(1,166,155) (129,513) (259,647) (28,836)
(58,218, 261) (6,465,720) (51,724,687) (5.744,544)
508,329,541 56,455,079 561,805,744 62,394,146
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2018 30 2017 30
4,659,217 517,453 20,701,233 2,299,079
3 (45,484,726) (5,051,534) (51,531,861) (5,723,128)
(26,882) (2,986)
3 22,553 2,505 2,743 305
7 27,287,591 3,030,560 30,298,103 3,364,907
13,651,108 1,516,092 13,814,221 1,534,207
(49,430) (5,490) 91,860 10,202
86,313 9,586 13,349,417 1,482,586
8 177,615,487 19,725,976 (247,013,708)  (27,433,342)
8,11 (185,559,401) (20,608,227) 102,326,834 11,364,418
4,8 (11,895) (1,321)
4,8 50,264 5,582 1,625,515 180,530
9 6,058 673 (54,225) (6,022)
4,8 (25,579) (2,841) (1,316,509) (146,211)
4,8 31,441 3,492
9 (166,316) (18,471) 744,633 82,699
3 (68,083) (7,561) 68,083 7,561
8 261,121 29,000 1,228,723 136,462
9 (81,531) (9,055) (104,320) (11,586)
3,4,8,12 267,673,611 29,727,831 (104,555,219)  (11,611,903)
3,4,8,12 (211,812,847) (23,523,935) 260,287,438 28,907,523
47,998,643 5,330,729 26,586,662 2,952,715
33,158,271 3,682,558 37,665,645 4,183,147
26,882 2,986
81,156,914 9,013,287 64,279,189 7,138,847
7 (27,287,591) (3,030,560) (30,298,103) (3,364,907)
6 51,904,002 5,764,458 51,362,128 5,704,278
6 (110,387,166) (12,259,599) (103,523,917) __ (11,497,366)
(85,770,755) (9,525,700) (82,459,892) (9,157,996)
(4,613,841) (512,413) (18,180,703) (2,019,149)
3,8 5,390,427 598,661 23,662,990 2,628,012
49,430 5,490 (91,860) (10,202)
3,8 826,016 91,737 5,390,427 598,661
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2018 30
2018 30 508,329,541
2017 30 561,805,744 2017
2018 30
2005
18 2005 18
2005 13
2005 13

2009
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2018
39

39
39

39

721270



60
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100 0.01
2017 101,600 0.02
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2018 30 2017 30
105,298
720,718 4,273,732
1,116,695
826,016 5,390,427
39,995,220 2017 30,959,040
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to be announced
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39
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12

2018 30 2017 30
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2018 30 2017 30
300 10
50,000
1,000,000 10,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00

300 10
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2018 2017 2018 2017
30 30 30 30
66,423,911 73,187,102 1,086 540,000
2,523,105 2,503,268 1,086
(10,040, 290) (9,266,459) (540,000)
58,906,726 66,423,911 1,086 1,086
2018 2017 2018 2017
30 30 30 30
80,202,786 87,014,635 423,390 457,250
4,407,620 7,588,070 3,132,640 3,990
(15,701,116)  (14,399,919) (168, 260) (37,850)
68,909,290 80,202,786 3,387,770 423,390
2018 30 2017 30
100 2018 30
2017 30
100 2018 30
100 100
27,324,698
0.441 2017 30,329,882 0.434
26,842,564 0.36 2017 30,112,401
0.360 445,027 0.408
2017 185,702 0.408
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2018 30

2017 30

227,000,000
2,581,053,026

308,000,000
1,164,800,855

407,000,000 488,000,000
2,501,618,410 996,820,506
376 37
659,864,805 646,856,528
2,163,884 13,150,242

3,584,448,175

1,343,806,712

93,235,274 327,039,607
218,326,904

104,570,000 92,294,000
15,388,000 32,172,000

84/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 30 2017 30
268,500,000 247,800,000
39,800,000 7,900,000
3,042,400,000 1,358,000,000
427,800,000 384,000,000
39,800,000 7,900,000
2,639,500,000 803,900,000
100 100
557,100,000 554,000,000
2,000,000 11,800,000
2,716,400,000 1,540,300,000
151,700,000 369,100,000
122,000,000
104,000,000 85,600,000
16,700,000 7,400,000

99
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2018 30 0.57 0.55 1.04
2017 30 0.55 0.51 1.08
2018 30 3.87 3.74 5.40
2017 30 3.76 3.49 4.98
2018 30

2,463,819 2,463,819

44,460 44,460

902,844 902,844

901,576 470,911 1,372,487

426,687 98,698 525,385

20,933,441 1,971,517 22,904,958

1,515 1,515

272,878 272,878
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502,867 502,867
98,376 98,376
112,024 112,024
2,819,732 2,819,732
67,724 67,724
24,725,523 7,363,546 32,089,069
1,159,618 1,159,618
532,759 532,759
1,499,428 1,499,428
362,766 362,766
24,103 24,103
5,322,545 5,322,545
171,343 171,343
646,703 646,703
3,688 3,688
729,656 729,656
738,693 738,693
93,934 93,934
174,534 174,534
526,351 526,351
12,335 12,335

11,998,456 11,998,456
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100,310 100,310
858 858
6 6
48 48
4,076 4,076
105,298 105,298
2017 30
78,088 78,088
2,169,844 2,169,844
270,866 179,289 450,155
404,438 468,148 872,586
82,273 82,273
76,977 76,977
17,109,482 848,592 17,958,074
33,355 33,355
71,698 71,698
360,833 360,833
62,497 62,497
1,202 1,202
1,107,710 1,107,710
223,759 223,759
39,052 39,052
74,016 74,016
918,178 918,178
82,132 82,132
216,031 216,031
19,954,630 4,923,830 24,878,460

88/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

534,928 534,928
58,674 58,674
839,002 839,002
274,184 274,184
157,249 157,249
1,354,082 1,354,082
34,119 34,119
86,501 86,501
52,138 52,138
256,054 256,054
1,017,054 1,017,054
105,397 105,397
135,896 135,896
64,644 64,644
354,065 354,065
129,070 129,070
5,453,057 5,453,057
(68,279) (68,279)

6 6

212 212

(22) (22)

(68,083) (68,083)
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2018 30

104,328
826,016 826,016
95,109,773 95,109,773
1,678,258 1,678,258
11,895 11,895
5,775,963 5,775,963
82,289,935 54,451,171 555,802,924 3,712,492 696,256,522
82,301,830 54,451,171 555,802,924 107,102,502 799,658,427
162,327,549 162,327,549
674,978 674,978
31,441 31,441
320,000 68,299 1,251,545 1,639,844
1,341,065 1,341,065
96,539 96,539
327,983 327,983
641,730 7,731,238 112,865,685 3,755,162 124,993,815
993,171 7,799,537 114,117,230 168,523,276 291,433,214
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2017 30
1,116,695 4,273,732 5,390,427
272,725,260 272,725,260
1,216,036 1,216,036
50,264 50,264
7,123,169 7,123,169
44,843,874 62,295,767 853,697,884 3,196,936 964,034,461
46,010,833 62,295,767 853,697,884 288,535,133  1,250,539,617
347,886,950 347,886,950
560,500 560,500
25,579 25,579
390,914 326,634 661,175 1,378,723
1,507,381 1,507,381
68,083 68,083
90,481 90,481
409,514 409,514
1,409,704 332,151,071 3,245,887 336,806,662
416,493 1,736,338 332,812,246 353,768,796 688,733,873
2018 30 2017 30
255,681 133,470
31,555,384 37,581,427
31,811,065 37,714,897
2018 30 2017 30
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104,328 2017

2018 30
155,089,246 24,211,628 620,357,553 799,658,427
162,327,549 162,327,549
674,978 674,978
31,441 31,441
320,000 1,319,844 1,639,844
1,341,065 1,341,065
96,539 96,539
327,983 327,983
799,727 3,246,145 120,947,943 124,993,815
508,329,541 508,329,541
674,248,823 3,246,145 122,267,787 799,762,755

2017 30
318,144,951 14,611,404 917,783,262 1,250,539,617
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347,886,950

347,886,950

560,500 560,500
25,579 25,579
1,378,723

1,507,381 1,507,381
68,083 68,083
90,481 90,481
409,514 409,514
832,272 2,413,615 333,560,775 336,806,662
561,805,744 561,805,744
913,186,504 2,413,615 334,939,498 1,250,539,617

2017

30,959,040
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2018 2017
30 30

32.35 33.14

25 0.60

8.86 10.61

21.31 22.52

20.05 21.31

11.18 9.83

5.94 28

69 5.42

(7.63) (5.71)

100.00 100.00

2018 30 2017 30
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7,732,671 2017 2,608,769
9,229,057 2017 2,168,971
10
2018 30 25.56
174,075,249 13.91
94,719,600 2017 46.22

441,519,262
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2018 30 2017 30
630,695,542 925,064,760
39,211,000 30,352,000
. 26,243,881 10,549,238
826,016 5,390,427
95,109,773 272,725,260
1,678,258 1,216,036
5,775,963 7,123,169
11,895
50,264
12
2018

2017
2018 2017
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2018

30

104,328 104,328
320,000 1,319,844 1,639,844
98,300 98,300
352,203 352,203
176,119 176,119
761,283 761,283
308,945 308,945
280,885 280,885
204,679 204,679
764,823 764,823
2,343,211 2,343,211
98,071 98,071
18,971,984 18,971,984
7,756,494 7,756,494
16,445,803 16,445,803
23,213,846 23,213,846
9,743,286 9,743,286
34,508,764 100 34,508,864
16,743,376 16,743,376
13,135,999 13,135,999
6,421,881 6,421,881
459,851 459,851
4,244,403 4,244,403
44,946,109 44,946,109
97,626,700 97,626,700
68,230,938 68,230,938
60,527,265 60,527,265
1,111,611 1,111,611
11,711,239 11,711,239
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413,839
1,631,599
2,490,448

435,758
1,613,331

172,575

938,344

73,445,067

158,656,091

413,839
1,631,599
2,490,448

435,758
1,613,331

172,575

938,344

73,445,067

158,656,091

320,000 682,409,292 100 682,729,392
3,712,492 3,712,492

4,073,351 4,073,351

332,888 332,888

5,512,727 5,512,727

13,631,458 13,631,458

696,360,850

12,023,960 12,023,960

1,303,256 1,303,256

162,213 162,213
3,755,162 3,755,162

3,873,993 3,873,993

3,688 3,688

411,961 411,961

9,873,529 9,873,529

17,918,333 17,918,333

92,664,301 92,664,301

1,330,362 1,330,362

13,080,819 13,080,819

124,993,815

100/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
ooooodoooinoooooodd

8,752,751 8,752,751
1,506,257 1,506,257
1,136,977 1,136,977
209,892 209,892
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2017

30

1,378,723 1,378,723
130,718 130,718
22,925,839 22,925,839
12,281,642 12,281,642
22,141,689 22,141,689
26,961,133 26,961,133
7,825,647 7,825,647
35,899,178 101,600 36,000,778
26,124,311 26,124,311
11,831,376 11,831,376
8,457,834 8,457,834
1,424,295 1,424,295
6,727,639 6,727,639
42,681,664 42,681,664
106,525,697 106,525,697
99,743,173 99,743,173
65,666,483 65,666,483
2,278,199 2,278,199
3,623,251 3,623,251
685,666 685,666
1,269,826 1,269,826
515,832 515,832
5,047,606 5,047,606
403,671 403,671
803,999 803,999
289,476 289,476
389,867 389,867
1,452,510 1,452,510
42,036,853 42,036,853
397,791,363 397,791,363
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955,315,160 101,600 955,416,760

3,196,936 3,196,936
562,175 562,175
515,985 515,985
4,342,605 4,342,605
8,617,701 8,617,701
964,034,461
1,116,695 1,116,695
5,228,419 5,228,419
3,245,887 3,245,887
520,298 520,298
816,658 816,658
194,191 194,191
6,303,161 6,303,161
11,080,195 11,080,195
321,029,686 321,029,686
1,524,883 1,524,883

3,171,898 3,171,898

336,806,662
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5,660,253 5,660,253

2,574,023 2,574,023

189,831 189,831

2017 30
2016 2017
30 30
# T t
100 101,500 101,600
13,572,683 (1,197,686) 64,839 128,284 (1,737,443) (10,830,677)

13,572,683 (1,197,686) 64,839 128,284 100 (1,737,443) 101,500 (10,830,677) 101,600
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2018 30 2017 30
1,116,695
39,211,000 30,352,000
34,234,067 11,684,853
13,631,458 8,617,701
1,639,844 1,378,723
88,716,369 53,149,972
607,644,481 912,001,184
696,360,850 965,151,156

2018 30 2017 30
1,264,022 (11,411,755)
8,196,327 34,691,775
9,460,349 23,280,020
33,814,486 22,588,710
(24,354,137) 691,310
9,460,349 23,280,020
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2.00 0.60

1.60 1.00

1.80 1.20

5,761,194 2017 6,286,365
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22,500

0.02
60,000 15,000

0.10

0.10

67,500
0.0030

5,000

2018 30 2017 30
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270,805

11

12
2018 30

2017

30

75,000
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Bank of Barclays Bank Barclays Capital Inc. Citibank, Citigroup Global
America N.A. PLC (clearing broker) N.A. Markets, Inc.
2018 30
* #
§ 2,117,726
* # 13,839 28,386
§ 57,048
* #
*# 270,503
§ 3,318
# 339,854 335,441 525,962
# 1,424,715 276,477 627,941
> 2,038,344 1,024,551
*k #
*%
3,816,752 640,304 2,178,092 2,178,454 270,503
* #
§ 2,135,533
* # 154,169 23,149
§ 51,331
*# 288,857 328,072
*H#
§
# 479,258 343,645 374,804
# 1,253,154 339,362 617,011
# 1,829,810 259,768 1,986,976
#
3,851,079 1,096,944 2,186,864 3,001,940 328,072
(34,327) (456,640) (8,772) (823,486) (57,569)
## (il (34,327) (456,640) (823,486)
(8,772) (57,569)
**
wx (110,778) (540,975) (1,130,115)
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Credit Suisse Securities

Credit Suisse (USA), LLC Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,

International (clearing broker) Bank AG International National Association
2018 30
* #
§ 13,447
*# 128,062 116,254
*#
*# 1,476,627 755,428
§
# 236,962 423,187 272,412
448,314
**# 553,697 1,458,856
** #
**
2,395,348 13,447 3,202,039 272,412
* #
§ 36,116
* # 39,188 243 60,917
*# 2,776,872 1,840,198
*#
§
# 181,456 806,292 96,528
523,970
# 609,560 3,026,666
#
3,607,076 36,116 243 6,258,043 96,528
(1,211,728) (22,669) (243) (3,056,004) 175,884
(1,211,728) (3,056,004) 112,655
(22,669) (243) 63,229
woke 112,655

(2,045,815)

(3,119,833)
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Morgan Stanley &

JPMorgan Chase JPMorgan Merrill LynchMerrill Lynch, Pierce, Co. International
Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Fenner & Smith, Inc. PLC
2018 30
*#
§
*# 38,074 8,273
*#
*# 1,480,953 231,312 339,646
17,718
# 423,635
971,004 324,900
okl 4,928,260 1,707,455
il 1,111,611
*x 39,211,000
7,472,584 1,489,226 231,312 39,228,718 2,372,001
* # 3,688
§
*# 21,278 113,017
* # 2,151,939 59,090 1,470,243
* #
5,823
# 371,252
794,105 346,391
# 3,757,505 1,568,030
# 1,330,362
6,278,190 2,264,956 59,090 5,823 3,384,664
1,194,394 (775,730) 172,222 39,222,895 (1,012,663)
1,087,476 (775,730) 119,713 39,222,895 (1,012,663)
106,918 52,509
wx 1,087,476 119,713
39,995,220
(823,190) (1,218,822)
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NatWest State Street Bank Wells Fargo WestPac
Markets PLC and Trust Co. UBS AG Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.
2018 30

§ 2,131,173

* # 332,888

8 57,048

- 4,554,469

§ 3,318

17,718

# 466,650 466,912 183,446 38,031 3,712,492
# 4,073,351

**H# 76 11,711,239

**H# 1,111,611

ol 39,211,000

466,650 466,912 183,446 76 38,031 66,916,307

*# 3,688

§ 2,171,649

*# 411,961

§ 51,331

* # 8,915,271

5,823

# 151,685 535,126 272,924 142,192 3,755,162
# 3,873,993

# 42,504 13,080,819

# 1,330,362

151,685 535,126 272,924 42,504 142,192 33,600,059

314,965 (68,214) (89,478) (42,428)  (104,161) 33,316,248

## 1) (60,957) (89,478)

## [io 314,965

(7,257) (42,428)  (104,161)

o 320,000 1,639,844
39,995,220
ok (60,957) (178,572) (9,229,057)
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Bank of  Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. Citibank, Credit Suisse Deutsche
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) N.A. International Bank AG
2017 30
* kk #
8§ 1,353,909
a4 159 238,607 25,548 25,598
* xk Y 1,938,798
§
§
> 647,459 147,338 316,390 163,829
> 201,094 19,150
**H# 213,402 616,490 1,475,965
*k #
*%
1,062,114 1,021,585 1,353,909 1,817,903 2,128,225
* k% #
§ 1,283,268
el 2 1,870 74,538 38,163 4,801
ok 4 258,206 2,879,264
§ 20,377
§
**# 200,184 174,523 289,311 184,526
** 175,217 45,926
**H 237,203 633,981 984,788
*% #
872,680 923,968 1,303,645 1,274,099 3,101,953 4,801
189,434 92,617 50,264 543,804 (973,728) (4,801)
# (3 173,438 543,804 (930,344)
# (3
15,996 92,617 50,264 (43,384) (4,801)
*x 173,438 544,110
ok (930,344)

114/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC Bank USA,

Goldman Sachs National JPMorgan Chase JPMorganMerrill Lynch, Pierce,

International Association Bank N.A.Securities LLC Fenner & Smith, Inc.
2017 30
* k% #
8§
ok 4 192,712 33,361
*ORxH 1,088,907 1,153,637
§
§
**H 517,609 8,690 268,722
ka2 12,820 329,111
**H# 113,598 1,203,796
o H 2,278,199
ok 30,352,000
1,925,646 8,690 4,079,828 1,186,998 30,352,000
oAk f 816,658
§
R4 42,408 25,281 7,130
oAk f 1,462,159 1,542,269
§
§ 25,579
okl 373,992 217,327 859,652
**H# 10,938 288,217
**H# 111,164 1,204,762
** H 1,524,883
2,000,661 217,327 4,719,453 1,549,399 25,579
(75,015) (208,637) (639,625) (362,401) 30,326,421
# i3 34,051 (158,714) (639,625) (129,766) 30,326,421
# i3
(109,066) (49,923) (232,635)
il 34,051
30,959,040
ok (158,714) (699,401) (129,766)
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UBS AG

WestPac

Banking Corp.

* oxk

* kx4

* kK

*k H

*k H

*k H
*k 4

F%k

723,785

56,557

292,786

53,771

1,353,909

515,985

4,181,342

3,196,936

562,175
3,623,251
2,278,199

30,352,000

723,785

56,557

292,786

53,771

46,063,797

* kK

* kx4

* kx4

**

*k H
*k H
*k f

198,696

274,719

402,875

70,082

816,658

1,283,268

194,191

6,141,898

20,377
25,579
3,245,887

520,298
3,171,898
1,524,883

198,696

274,719

402,875

70,082

16,944,937

525,089

(218,162)

(110,089)

(16,311)

29,118,860

525,089

(140,944)

(109,802)

(77,218)

(287)

(16,311)

*k

Fk

627,124

(140,944)

(109,802)

1,378,723
30,959,040
(2,168,971)
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April 30
ASSETS Notes ws 2007
Financial assets &t Fairvalue through profit or koss® 3,4,8,12 696,360,850 5564,034 461
Salus of investments swaiting settlement g 85108773 FAT25.260
Subscriptions of units awaiting settlement & 1,578,258 1,216,038
Recetvable e variation mangin on futures contracts 4 11555 =
E:ﬁmhrwia!in?iﬂmuncmtﬂrﬁmedwap ContFacts 4 - 50,264
Ireest and ather receivables 5715.963 1133169
Cash and cash equbvalents 38 B26,016 5390437
Total Assots 709,762,755 1,250,539,617
LIABILITIES
Financial labilitses an fasr value theowgh profit or loss” 3,4,8,12 124,993,815 136,806,662
Purehases ol imvestmonts swailing sellioment 8,11 162,327,549 347,586,950
Redemptions.of units awasing settiement 8 B4R 550,500
_Pepbleforaaionmarginonfutorasconteacts. 4 0 0 = il
Payable lor variation margin on centrally cleared swagp contracls 4 3441 -
Payable for management fees 5 1.34),085 1,507,381
Al o - @ B = e
Payable lor cusiady and administratiee foes 9 55,530 B0.481
Collateral on certain dervative contracis, at value S 1.539,3:‘.! : }E,_?il_
Ovescuedepenses s 327883 a5
Total Liabilities [excluding net assets attributable to helders
of redremable units) M 191,433,214 _ G8E, 733,873
Wet Assets attributable to holders of redeomable units at bid/ask prices a8 _ 5508,328,541 4561,805,7a4
Mot Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putnam Diversified Income Trust [Cayman) $508,056,570 %561,946,708

* Soe Mate 3B

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds (Cayman) g
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For the yearsended

- DPERATING INCOME Nate: 2015 2007
Interest inceeme 3 $31,811,065 537,714,897
Dividend incoma - 26,882
et realized and unrealized gain/lloss) of assets and Rabilties in foseign curencies 45430 (34,8600
Het realized and unrealized gain/llosston financial assets at fair value theough peofitor loss

; (inchrdes payment Trom affiliate of $270,805) 1 9410,91% 23,371,680
Total Gperating Income 41,271,414 61,021,753
OPERATING EXPENSES
Managemont fees 9 8400436 9,157,018
Cusiodyioes L) 177,319 153,488

_hdminfstrative fees - 3 50,229 5,500
Transfer agent foes 9 392,761 353,021
Trustes fpes 9 BE3443 2,710

_Agd-t fpes ] 754 84,648
Dther cagonses ) 107,061 142,355
Total Dperating Expenses 9,302,053 10,009,720
Qperating Prefit 3L9H,3$_1__ ____Eil._'._mlﬂ
Finance Costs
[hstributions (o holders of redeernable units 7 (27,287,541 130,258,103
Praofit after distributions and before tax 4,681,170 20,703,976
Withholding tases - N S " . i
Prafit after distributions and tax 4,655,217 20,701,233
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from operations 54,650,217 £20,701,233

The accompanying notes are an integral part af these financial staternents.
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

For the years ended
April 30
Hote 008 2007
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemabile units at the beginning of year 5561,805,T44 4592,529,198
Iﬂmminnﬂtm:uuributlblw helders of redeemable units fram aperations 4,659,217 10,701,233
Increase in capital from settlement payments o ;2.84-1 _—-——
REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS
Proceeds from unitsissued
Class| & 10,000
Cings ) & 30,507 378 51532540
Class ™ L 25,665,005 26,313
véveofuhsredeeed -
Classi & - 4,974 408)
Class J & {104,335, 485) [98,159,347)
ClassM & {1,166,155) {255.547)
Decrease in net acsets resulting from redeemable unittransactions - ) )  [58,218.261)  [51,T24,687)
et Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the ond of year 8 5508,329,541 $561,805,7a4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Putniam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman] B
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Combined statements of cash flows

Cash fows from operaling orinities
INCrEse in Net a55ets atlributable to holders of redeamable units from operations 54659217 20,701,233
Adjustment 1o reconcile operating profit/Tloss) los the final peried to
net cash generated fromy{used in) operating activities
Interest income 3 (45,484, 7.6 (51,531,861)
Devidend income - (26,882
Withholding takes 3 22,553 2,143
Distributions to the halders of redeematite units - - 7 21,267,581 30,298,103
Mel amortization of premivms 13,651,108 13,814,521
Exchange gainsfflosses) oncash and cash equbalents [45,430) 41,850
85,313 13,348,417
Net fincreaselfdecrease in sales of investments awaiting settlement ] ITTE15.4087 (247,003,708}
Kt increase/idecrease) in purchases of imaesimants awaiting settlement B11 {165,559.400) 102,336,634
Met [inereaselidecreass in reteivabls for variation malginon futures ConirasLy 4,8 {11,895 =
Met jincreasel/decreass in receivable for variation masginon centrally cleased swaps 4.8 50,264 1525515
et increase/idecrease] in payable for custody and adménistrative Tees 9 6,058 (54,225
Met increaseidecrease) in payable for vasiation margin on futuees contracls 4.3_ - 25519 (1,316, 50%
: Mot incroaseidocrease) in payable forvasiation margin on centrally cleared swaps +8 344 =
Hﬂhmﬂdﬂcremﬂhpqamufmmmwfm o [166,316) T44.633
Metincrease/idecrease] in payableto custodian T = (68,083 Bs0e3.
heet increaseidocreise) in collzeral on ceriain derivalive CONTracts, atvalue B 261,121 1,328,723
Met increate foecrease] in payable lor other accrusd evpenses 9 [B1,531) {104,3200
Met increaseldecroase in linancial assots a2 fasr value throwgh profdit or foss 3,4,8,12 26TRT3611 (104,555,219
Met increase fdecrease] in financial labilities at fairvalue through peafis o loss 3,4.8,12 {211,813,B47) 260,287438
Cash flows generated fromf{used in) operating activities 47,598,643 26,586,662
Interest recehed 33,156,271 37,655,645
Dividends received - o - e
Het cash generated from/jused in) operating activities 81,156,314 64,279,189
Cosh fows from lingncing octhitios
Distribulions paid to the holders of redeemable units 7 (27, 287.500) [30,298,103)
Proceeds from redeemable units & 51,004,002 51,352,118
Regemplions of redeemable units & [130,387,165) (103,523,517
Met cash generated fromj{used in) financing activities {85,770,755) (B2,459,692)
Met Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [4,613,641) (18,180,703)
Cash and cash cquivalenis at beginning of year 3.8 5,380,437 23,562,990
Exchange [gains)losses on cash and cash equivalents 43430 (3, 2600
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,8 $B26,016 45,380,427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds iCayman) 9
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/18

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Notes to combined financial staternents, references 1o "State Street”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Company
and references to "OTC", if any, represent ever-the-counter. References to “funds’ net assets” are based on net assets of $508,329,541 at April 30,
2018, 5561.805,744 a1 April 30, 2007. Unless otherwise noted, the “reporting period” represents the peried fram May 1, 2017 theough April 30, 2018,

Putnam Diversified income Trust [Cayrman) Master Fund [the "Master Fund®), is a series trust of the Putnam Offshose Master Series Trust (the
“Master Trust"), pursuant to the Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 and the Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18,
2005 between CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman) Limited and The Putnam advisory Company, LLC [PAC). Putnam Diversified income
Trust [Cayman) (the “Feeder Fund”) is established as a series trust of the Putnam Offshare Feeder Series Trust (the “Feeder Trust™), pursuant to
the amended and restated Feeder Base Trust Deed dated July 13, 2005 and the Feeder Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 13, 2005 between
MaplesFs Limited and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC. The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Mutual Funds Law (2009
Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund operate as a masterTeeder fund structure (collectively the “funds”) (each individually a “fund”) whereby
substantially all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are invested in units of the Master Fund. These combined financial staterments are in respect
of the funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and records are maintained for each fund in order to determing the net asset value for the Feeder Fund, The Feeder Fund has the
same inherent risks as the Master Fund,

The manager of the funds is The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Manager”), a limited Hability company organized under the laws of the State
of Delaware, U.5_A. State Street (the *Custodian®) is the custodian of the funds,

The irmestment objective of the funds s 1o seek as high a level of curment income as the Manager befieves is consistent with preservation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds” objective by investing mainly in bonds that are securitized debt instruments and ather
obligations of companies and governments wordwide, are either investrment-grade or below investment-grade (high yield bonds), and have
intermediate to lonp-term maturities (threo years or longer).

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (TIFRS") as pulished
by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). The principal accounting palicies have been applied consistently by the funds for 21l
periods presented, unless cthenwise stated, Prior period amounts may have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
Current period and prior year combined financial statements of the furds are presented on a combined basis as management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent one reparting entity given the manner in which the entities 2re managed. References to the
financial staterments hereafier are to be considered on a combined basis. Intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full,

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The fallowing i< a surmmary of the significant aceounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on 3 historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities clas-
sified at fair value through profitor koss, The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the amounts reparted in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results coutd differ fram
these estimates.

{a) Standards and amendments to existing standards:

IFRS 8 — ‘Financials Instruments’ (efective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 201E), IFRS 9 is the first standard issued as partofa
wider project to replace IAS 39. IFRS S retains but simpilifies the mixed measurement model and establishes tao primary measurement categories
for financial assets; amortized cost and fairvalue, The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. The guidance in IAS 39 on impainment of financial assets and hedge accounting cantinues to apply.
Management has evaluated IFRS 9 and all financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on the same basis as is curmently
adopted under1AS 38 [Fair Value through Profit 2nd Loss).

{b) Financial instruments

(i) Classification

The inwestments and related derivatives of the Master Fund are classified as financial assets or fingncial Babilities a1 fair value through
profit orloss. These financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading by the Manager or at fair value through prafit or loss
at inception. Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit o loss at inception ane those that ane managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the funds’ investrment objective, Financial assets held for trading

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 10
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are acquired or incurred principally for the purpese of penerating a profit from shart-term fluctuation in price. Derhvatives, If any, are
categorized as held for trading, as the Manager does not designate any derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes under 1AS 39,

(i) Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Master Fund commits to puschase or sell the
imvestment, Imaestments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired and the Master Fund
as transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

f&acu-itil_as purchased or soid on a delayed delivery basis may be settled at a future date beyond customary settlement time; interest
income is accrued based on the terms of the securities. Losses may arise due to changesin the fairvalue of the undertying securities or if
the countenparty does nat perform under the contract,

(iii) Measurement

Financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are recorded in the Statements of
comprehensive income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss”
category are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income in the period inwhich they arise.

Imvestments for which market quatations are readily available are valued at the [ast reparted sales price on their principal exchange, or
official closing price for certain markets, and are classified as Level 1 securities under Accounting Standards Codification IFRS T Fair Value
Meosurements and Disclosures (IFRS T). If no sales are reported, as in the case of some securities that are traded OTC, a security is valued at
its last reported bid price and is enerally categorized as a Level 2 security,

Market quotations ane not considered to be readily available for certain debt obligations (including short-term investrments with remaining
rraturities of 60 days or less) and other investments; such imvestments are valued on the basis of valuations furnished by an independent
picing service approved by the Manapger or dealers selected by the Manager, Such services or dealers determing valuations for nosmal
institutional-size trading units of such securities using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and various refa-
tignships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities (which consider such factors as security prices, yields, matur-
ities and ratings). These securities will generally be categorized as Level 2. Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided
by a single source. Securities quoted in foreign currencies, if any, are translated into LLS. Dollars at the current exchange rate.

The quated market prces used for financial assets held by the Master Fund are the current bad price; the appropriate quated market price
used for the financial liabilities is the current asking price, however quoted market prices for both financial assets and financial liabilities
held may fall within the bidfask spread.

To the extent a pricing service or dealer is unable to value a security or provides a waluation that the Manager does not beliewe accu-
rately reflects the security's fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures
approved by the Manager, Certain investments, including certain restricted and illiquid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fair
value following procedures approved by the Manager. These valuations consider such factors as significant market or specific security
events such as interest rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount rates, LS, Treasury, UL5. swap
and credit yields, index levels, convexity exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multipbes and resale restrictions, These securities are
classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority of the significant inputs.

Investments in collective or other inestmient funds are vatued with reference to their respective et asset value per unit on the relevant
valuation date. At the end of the reporting period, the Master Fund’s securities and derivatives fair valued by the Manager totaled 5100 or
<0.01% of the funds’ net assets and 5Nl of Eabilities (2007 5101,600 or 0.02% of the funds’ net assets and SHil of liabslities).

(c) Off-setting financial instruments
Financial assets and abilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statements of financial position wihen there is 3 legaliy enforceable
right to off-set the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanegusly,

{d) Income from investments

Depasit interest and interest income arising on the underying fixed income investments of the Master Fund ane recognized as income of the
Master Fund on an accrual basis. Interest income from financial assets at fairvalue thaough profit or loss is recognized in the Statements of
comprehensive income within interest income using the eflective interest methed. Income received from collective or other investment funds

is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as earned by the underlying investrment. All premiums/discounts are amortized/
accreted on a yield-to-maturity basis, The Master Fund earned certain fees in connection with its senior [oan purchasing sctivities, These fees are
treated as market discount and are amortized into income in the Statements of comprehensive incame.

(e} Distribution policy

Distributions to the unitholders from operating profit/loss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unithalders of the Feeder Fund, subject to the
approval of the Manager. Income distributions, if any, will be made monthly. Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fund arer asa
finance cost in the Statements of comprehensive income. Distributions from capital gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and paid at
least annually.

Putnam Drversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 11
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{f) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises current deposits with banks, including foreign currencies. Cash equivalents are shoet-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting

short-term cash needs rather than for investments or other purposes. Bank overdrafis, if any, are shown as payable to custodian in the
Statements of financial position.

April 30
Cash and cash equivalents 2018 2017
Foreign cash 505,298 5=
UsDcash THTIE 4,273,732
Cashequivalents i 1,116,655
Total cash and cash equivalents $826,016 §5,390,427

(g} Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through its custodian, receives delivery of the underlying securities, the fairvalue of which at the time of purchase is required
tobein an amount at least equal to the resale price, including acorued interest. At the end of the reperting period, collateral for certain tri-party
repurchase agreements, which totaled 539,995,230 (2017: 530,958,040), is held at the counterparty’s custodian in 2 segregated acoount for the
benefit of the Master Fund and the countenparty, The Manager is responsible for determining that the value of these underlying securities is at 2ll
times at least equal to the resale price, including acorued intenest, In thie event of default or bankrupley by the other party to the agresment, feten-
tion of the coflateral may be subject to legal proceedings.

(h) Stripped securities

The Master Fund may invest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may be structured in classes with rights to
raceive different portions of the interest and principall Interest-ondy securities receive all of the interest and principal-anly securities receive all of
the principal. If the interest-only securities experience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Fund may fail to recoup fully
iits initial investment in these securities. Comersely, principal-only securities increase in value if prepayments are greater than anticipated and
decline if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair value of these securities is highly sensitive to changes in interess rates.

{1} Forelgn currency translation

{1} Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting reconds of the Master Fund and Feeder Fund are maintained in LL5. Dollars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of their redeemable units, The Manager considers the U.S. dollar the currency that most faithfully
represants the econamic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions, The LS. dollar is the currency in which the funds
mieasure their performance and repart their results. This determination also considers the competitive environments in which the funds
are compared to other investment products. The financial statements ane presented in LS. dellars.

{ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchan ge rates prevailing at the dates of the transac-
tians. The eostof each security is determined using historical exchange rates. Income, expenses and withholding taxes are franslated at
prevailing exchange rates when earned or incurred, The Master Fund does not isolate that partion of realized or undealized gains or losses
resulting fram changes in the foreign exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices of the
securities, Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation and fareign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income 25 Net raalized and unrealized gain/Tloss) of assets and liabilities in
fareign currencies, Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-manetary financial assets and llabilities such as equi-
ties at fairvalue threugh profit and loss are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive income as Net realized and unrealized gain/
{loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Investments in foreign securities involve certain risks, inciuding those related to
economic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency luctuations, not present with domestic investmeants.

(j} TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into TEWA (io be announced) commitments Lo purchase securities for a fied unit price at a future date beyond
customary settlement time. Although the unit price and par amount have been established, the actual securities have not been specified,
However, it is anticipated that the amount of the cemmitrnents will not significantly diffier from the principal amount. The Master Fund holds, and
maintains until settlement date, cash or high-grade debt abligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter Into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it awns. Income on the securities will not be earmed until settlement date.

The Master Fund may also enter into TBA sale commitments to hedge its portfolio positions, to sell mortgage-backed securities it owns under
delayed delivery arrangements or to take a short position in mortgape-backed securities. Proceeds of TBA sale commitments are not received
until the contractual settlement date. During the time a TBA sale commitment is outstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or an offset-
ting TBA purchase commitment deliverable on or before the sale commitment date are held as “cover” for the transaction, of other liquid assetsin
an amount equal to the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segregated, If the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition
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of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes a gain or loss. I the Master Fund delivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain or a loss from the sale of the securities based upon the unit price established at the date the commitment was
entered into.

TaA commitments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themsebees, and invobée a risk of loss
due to changes in the value of the security prior to the settlement date as well as the risk that the counterparty te the transaction will not perfarm
its obligations. Counterparty risk is mitigated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Unsettled TBA commitments are valued at their fair value according to the procedures described under “Measurement” above, The contract is
marked to market daily and the change in fair value is recorded by the Master Fund as an unrealized gain or loss. Based on market circumstances,
the Manager will determine whether to take delivery of the underlying securities or to dispase of the TBA commitments pricr to settlement,

4, DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative Contracts may serve as a component of the Master Fund's investment strategy and are utilized primarily to structure and economically
hedge imestments to enhance performance and reduce risk to the funds, orfor other imestment purposes, The Master Fund does not designate
vy derivatives a2 hiedges for hedge sccounting porposes as described under WS 20 and hanoe these derivative linancial mstruments ane classi-
fied at fair value through profitor loss, The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hold or issue include, but are not limited to, forwards,
futures, options, certain currency transactions and swap contracts,

Thee Master Fund entered into options contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments if there is anilliquid
secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchanpe rates mowve unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform. If
awritten call option s exercised, the premium originally received is recorded as an addition to sales proceeds. If a written put option is exercised,
the premivm originally received is recorded as a reduction to the costof investments, Exchange-traded options are valued at the last sale price
ar, if o sales are reported, the last bid price for purchased options and the last ask price for written options, OTC traded options arg valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar to options on securities except that the premium paid or received is o buy or grant the
right to enter inta a previowsly agreed upan interest rate or credit default contract. Forward premium swap option contracts include premiums
that have extended settlement dates. The delayed settlement of the premiurms is factored into the daily valuation of the option contracts. In

the case of interest rate cap and floor contracts, in return for a premium, ongoing payments Detween two parties are based oninterest rates
exceeding a specified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or falling below a specified rate in the case of a floor contract.

The Master Fund entered inte futures contracts, Losses may arise [rom changes in the value of the underlying instrumants, if there is an iiliquid
secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform.
With futures, there ks minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures are exchange traded and the exchange's clearinghouse, as coun-
terparty to all sxchange traded futuses, puarantees the futures against default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized an the Statements of finan-
cial position, When the contract is closed, the Master Fund records a realized gain of loss equal to the difference between the value of the cantract
atthe time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed, Futures contracts arevalued at the quoted daily settlement prices established
by the exchange on which they trade, The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchange an amaunt of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the
walue of the futures contract. Such receipts or payments are known as “variation margin.”

Thie Master Fund bays and sells forward currency contracts, which are agreements between two parties to buy and sell currencies at a set price
on a future date. The U5, doltar value of forward currency contracts is determined using current fonward currency exchange rates supplied by a
quotation service, The fair value of the contract will fluctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The cantract is marked to market daily
and the change in fairvalue is recorded as an unrealized gain of loss. The Master Fund records a realized gain.of bass equal to the difference
between the value of the contract at the time it was apened and the value at the time itwas closed when the contract matures of by delivery of
the currency. The funds could be exposed to risk if thevalue of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties to the contracts are unable
to meet the terms of their contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter into a closing position. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statements of financial position.

The Master Fund entered inta OTC and/or centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, which ane asfangements between two parties to
exchange cash flows based on a national principal amaunt. An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an
updrant premium, For OTC Interest rate swap cantracts, an upfront payment recetved by the Master Fund is recorded as a liability on the Master
Fund's books. An upfront payment made by the Master Fund is recordied s an asset on the Master Fund's boaks, OTC and centrally cleaned
interest rate swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotations frorm an independent pricing service or market makers. Any
change is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps. Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
aresettled through a central clearing agent and are recorded in variation margin an the Statements of financizl position and recorded as unreal-
ized gain or loss. Payments, including wpfront premaums, received or made are recorded as realized gains of kxsses at the reset date or the closing
of the contract, Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related to these
swap contracts ase accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes
in the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central elearing agency or &
clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, on its respective obligation to perform under the contract.
The funds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central clearing risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC
intenest rate swap contracts by having a master netting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts through the daity exchange of variation margin. There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared
intenest rate swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund and other resources that ane available in the event of a clearing member
default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position.
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The Master Fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cheared total return swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-linked
return for a periodic payment, both based on a netional principal amount. To the extent that the total return of the security, index or other finan-
cial measure underhying the transaction exceeds or falls short of the offsatting intenest rate obligation, the Master Fund will recaive a payment
from or make a payment to the counterparty. OTC and/or centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon
quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers, Any change is recarded as an unrealized gain o loss on OTC total return swaps,
Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared total return swaps are settled through a central clearing agent and are recorded in variation
margin on the Statements of financial position and reearded as unsealized gain or loss. Payments recéived or made are recorded a5 realized gains
or losses. Certain OTC and/for centrally cleared tofal return swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related to these swap
contracts ane accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be expesed to credit or market risk due to unfavarable changes in the
fluctuation of interest rates or in the price of the underlying security of index, the possibility that there is no liquid market for these agreements
o that the counterparty may default on its obligation to perform. The funds’ maxirmum risk of loss from countenparty risk or central clearing risk
is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC tatal return swap contracts by having a master netting arangement between
the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin.
There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared total return swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund and
otherresources that are avallable in the event of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of
financial position,

The Master Fund entered inta OTC and/for centrally cleared credit default contracts, 1n OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts, the
pretection buyer typically makes a periodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receive a
contingent payment upan the accurmence of a credit event on the reference obigation ar all other equally ranked obligations of the refenence
entity. Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuring and obligation acceleration. For OTC cradit
default contracts, an upfrant payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as. a liability on the Master Fund's booles, An upfront payment
miade by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books. Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the same rights
to the protection buyer and sefer except the payments between parties, including upfront premiums, ane settled through a central clearing agent
through variation margin payments, Upfrant and periodic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centrally cleared credit
default contracts are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or close of the contract. The OTC and centrally cleared credit default
contracts are marked to market daily besed upon quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change invalue of OTC
credit default contracts is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss. Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts are
recorded invariation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Upon the ocourrence of 2 credit
event, the difference between the par value and fair value of the reference abligation, net of any propartional amaount of the upfront payment, is
recorded as a realized gain or loss. In addition to bearing the risk that the credit event will ccour, the funds could be exposed to market risk due

to unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the underlying security orindex or the possibility that the Master Fund may be unable to
close sut its position at the same time or at the same price as if it had purchased the underying reference cbligations, In certain croumstances,
the Master Fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss, Risks of loss may
exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position. The funds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the protec-
tion sefler or as the protection buyer, Is the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit default contracts by having a master
netting arranpement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally clearad credit default contracts through the dady exchange
ol variation margin, Counterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due to the clearinghouse
guarantee fund and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Where the Master Fund is a seller of pratection,
the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund may be required to make is equal o the notional amount.

Income related to swap contracts is accrued based on the terms of the contract. Recehvables and payables related to closed swap contracts are
presented in the Financial Assets or Liabilities at fair value through profitor loss line items on the Statements of financial position. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts are included in Met realized and unrealized gain/floss) on financial assets at fairvalue through
profitor loss.

The notional amoantsof certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognized on the Statements
of financial posithon, but they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows imvabeed o the current farvalue of the instruments
and do not therefore indicate & fund's exposure to credit or market price risks, The derivative instruments becorme faverable (assets) or unfaver-
able (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual o ational
amount of derivative financial instrurments on hand, the extent 1 which instruments are favorable or unfaverable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

5. TAXATION

The Master Fund invests in securities isswed by entities which are primarily domiciled in countries other than the Cayman tslands. Many of these
fareign countries have tax laws that indicate that capital gains taves may be applicable to non-residents, such as the funds. Typically, these
capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Master Fund's
brokers on a withholding basis.

In accordance with |AS 12 — Income Toxes, the funds are requined to recognize a tax liability when it is probabe that the tax laws of foreign coun-
tries require 3 tax [ability to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced from swch foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authosities
hanvie full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax ligbility is then measwred at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant
tanation autherities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. Thera is
sometimes uncertainty about whether of not a tax Eability will uitimately be paid by the funds. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
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liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and cirocumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment,
including amy formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

AR April 30, 2008 and April 30, 2017, the funds had no significant uncertain tax [iability positions with respect to foreign capital gains tanes.

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

Arthe end of the reporting periods April 30, 2008 and April 30, 2017, the Master Fund had Class 5 and Class | Linits available for issue. Unless the
Manager determines otherwise, the minimum initial investrnent fior Class S is 300 Units and the minimurm subsequent subscription shall be 10
Units, proviced that the absolute minimum initial investrments shall be US350,000 or its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determines otherwise, the minimum number of Class | Units that ean be subseribed for by way of initial investment shall be 1,000,000
Units, the mindmum aggregate value of the initial imeestment shall be US510,000,000 and the minimum number of Units that can be subscribed for
by way of subsequent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregate value of the initial investment in Class | Units that the
Manager may determine shall be U5550,000.

The Feeder Fund has unlimited Units of capital. Each Unit will represent an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund. MaplesFS Limited
[the “Feeder Fund Trustee™), at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power to designate and issue Units from time to time by reference

to a separate Class and/for series and determine the manner inwhich Units of any Class andfor series differ fram Units of any other Class and/for
series. The Feeder Fund curnently has two Classes of Units, Class J and Class M Units, which are investors into Class S of the Master Fund. Class M
Units are sold with a maximum front-end sales charge of 3.25% and do not pay a contingent deferred sales charge (CDSC). Class J Units do not
pay afrant-end sales charge and are subject to COSC of up to 4.00% if those Units are redeemed within five years of purchase. Unless the Manager
datermines othenwisa, the minimum initial investment for Class J (CD5C) and Class M Units shall be 300 Units and the minimum subsequent
subscriptions shall be 10 Units,

Thenet asset value of each class is calovlated by dividing the net assets attributable to the helders of redeemable units of a particular class of
units, with the total number of outstanding redeemable units of that class. In accordance with the provisions of the funds’ governing documents,
investment positions are valued based on the bid/ask market price for the purpose of determining the net asset value per unit for subscriptions
and redemptions. Proceeds and payments for redeemable participating units issued and redeemed are shown as movements in the Statements
of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units. The Feeder Fund generally provides its unitholders with the
right to redeem their interest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date [generally daily) for cash equal to the proportionate share of the net asset
value of the Feeder Fund., The Manager, the Transfer Agent or other delegate of the Manaper reserves the right to reject any application for Units
without stating any reason for doing 5o, The Feeder Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable at the holder’s option and are classified
2% financial labilites. The redeemable units are carried at the redemnption amount that is payabile at the end of the reporting period, if the holder
exercises the right to put the unit back to the funds.

Unit transactions for the years were as follows:

Magber Fund Clazs s Class |
April30 Aprilag
2018 2017 2018 017
LUnéts cutstanding at beginning of year 66,423,911 T3,167,102 1,088 540,000
Urits igued 2,523,105 2,503 268 i 1,086
Units redeemed [E0,040,250) 15, 266,455) - (540,000}
Units outstanding atend of year 58,906,726 66,423,811 1,086 1,086
Feeder Fund Class J Class M
April 30 April 30
2008 | 2017 ms | 2017
Units gutstanding at beginning of year 80,201,786 | 87,014,635 423,790 457,250
Units isswed 4407620 | 7.588,0M0 3,132,640 3850
Urits redeermed Q501,108 | 114,399,915 {168,260 (3.850)
Units eutstanding at end of yoar 68,909,290 | 80,202,786 3,387,770 423,390

At April 30, 2018 and 2017, 100% of the Feeder Fund's Class J and Class M redeemable units were held by two unaffiliated inestors, At Apiril 20,
2018 and 2007, 100% of the Master Fund's Class S redeemable units were held by the Feeder Fund, AL April 30, 2018, 100% of the Master Fund's
Class | redearnable wnits were held by an affiliate of the Manages (2007: 100%).

7. DISTRIBUTIONS
Distributions to the unitholders are made at the discretion of the Manager in an amount and at such time as determined to be appropriate, AL the

end of the reparting pericd dividends paid by the Master Fund Class S amounted te 527,324,658 or 50,441 perunit (2017: 530,339,882 or 50.434 per
unith, At thie end of the reporting period thene were no dividends paid to Class | (2017 SNil).
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At the end of the reporting period dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class J and Class M amounted to 526,842,564 or 50036 per unit (2017:

530,112,401 or 50.360 per unit) and 5445,027 or 50408 per wnit (2017; $185.702 or $0.408 per unit), respectively. Distributions from the Feeder Fund
are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive income as a finance cost.

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds have imvestment guidelines that set out their overall business strategies, their tolerance for risk and their general risk management
philosophy. The funds’ financial assets and [iabilities at fair value comprise the Master Fund's financial instruments which include:

Irvestments including fixed-income securities and floating rate securities;
+  Bonds that are securitized debt instrurments and other obligations of companies and governments wosldwide:
+  Cashand short-term investments; and

+  Devivative transactions which the Master Fund enters intd to manage the intenest rate and currency risks ansing from the Master Fund's
investment activities.

{a) Market price risk

While it is the intention of the Manager to implement strategies which are designed to minimize potential losses, there can be no assurance that
these strategies will be successiul, Itis possible that an investor may lose a substantial proportion of all of its investment. Az a result, each investor
showld casefully consider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds.

The funds are exposed to market risk (which includes market price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk), liquidity risk and creditor default
rigk, The funds’ risk managerment process cansists of a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks and balances.
The Manager performs periodic reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these rizks and they are summarized below, These policies
hanre remained substantially unchanged since the beginning of the period to which these financial staterments relate,

Market risk arises mainly fram uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential loss the funds might suffer
through holding market positions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market. The Manager considers the asset allocation of the funds in order to minimize the risk associated with particular
countries or industry sectors while continuing to follow the funds' imestment objective through a careful selection of securities and other finan-
cial instruments within specified limits. Market risk can also potentially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered inta by the funds. The
Managor mieatures both the Master Fund's total risk as well as thair risk of undenperformance versus their stated benchmark,

Under normal market conditions, the Manager expects b imest 1596 - 65% of the Master Fund's net assets in each of these thiee sectors: LS, and
imestment-grade sector - U5, government securities and investment-grade bonds of U.5. companies, High yield sector - lower-rated bonds of LS.
companies, and International sector - bands of fareign govwernments and companies, including bath investment grade and lower-rated securities.

At the end of the reperting period, imeestments in L5, securities were approximately B6% [2017: approximately S09%).
At the end of the reporting periods, the funds’ national exposune on derivative contracts were as follows:

April 30
218 | 2017
Purchased TBA commibrment oplion contracts (tontract amount) SV 000,000 | 5308,000,000
Purchacsed swap oplion ConlFacts [CoRFCt amaunt) $2,581,053,006 51,164,800 855
Written THA commitment option contracts (contract amount) s07po0p0 | 5488,000,000
Written swap cption cantracts (cantract amauni) 52501608410 i 5596 520,506

Fulures centraets {number of contracts) w | v |
Forward currency contracts (sontract amount} $550,864,505 ! §646,856,508
OTC interest rate swap contracts (noticnal) 52,163,584 | 513,150242
Centrally cleared imenest rate swap contracis frational) 53,584, 44B075 | 51,343,806,712
DT total retum swag contracts (notions) saasam | 5327.039,607
Centrally cheared total return Sivog Contracts (notional} 218326904 | 5~
OTC eredit dedault contracts (national) S04 570,000 S82EH000
Centrally cleared credit default contracts (notional 515,388,000 §32,172000
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Thevolume of activity for the reperting periods for any derivative type that was held during the period iz Ested below and were as follows based
on.an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter;

April 30

2018 2017

Purchased TEA commitment option contradts {oontract amount) 5S268,500,000 5247 BO0.OX
Furchased curmency options [comract amount) 539,800,000 57,900,000
Purchased swap option contracts [contract amount) 53.042,400,000 51.358,000,000
Written TEA commitment option contracts joontract amount) S427 800,000 5304 000,000
Wiithen cutfincy options (contract amourt) 538,800,000 7,500,000
Written swap option contracis {contrad amaount} §3539,500,000 5803,900,000
Futures contracts inumber of contracts) 100 100
Farward cummency contracts fcontract amount} 557,100,000 5554,000,000
OTC interest rate swap oontradts (national) 52,000,000 511,800,000
Centealty choaned intenest rate swag contracts (natianal) $2,716,400,000 51,540,300,000
OTC toted reburn swap contracts (notional) SESLTO000 5365, 100,000
Centrally cheared total return swap contracts {netiona) $172000,000 §=
OTC credit default contracts {national) $104,000,000 583,600,000
Centratly cleared credit default contracts {notianal) $16,700,000 57,400,000

Aggregate Value at risk

The Value at Risk (VaR] risk measune estimates the manimum expected loss in pre-taxation profit over a given halding period for a specified confi-
dence level, The vaR methodalogy is a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes into account market wolatilities s well as risk
diversification by recognizing offsetting positions and comelations between products and markets, Risks can be measured consistently across
all markets and products, and risk measures can ba aggregated 1o arrhve at a singhe risk number, Given the interdependencies between market
variables, the Master Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold loss that is not expected to be exceeded at the $9th percentile confidence level
over a 1-day horizon, The Manager uses a proprictary multi-Factor model to estimate the active risk (also refarred to as tracking errod} from which
¥aR estimates can be analytically derived. The VaR estimates presented below are point-in-time and vary over time 2s a function of market and
portiolio composition changes and are representative of activity during the period.

Ghaen its reliance an historical data, VaR is most effactive in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental
changes or sudden shifts in market conditions. An inherent limitation of Var is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factors may
not produce accurate predictions of future risk. DifferentVaR methodologles and distributional assumptions could produce a materially different
VaR. Moreover, VaR calculated for 2 one-day time harizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liquidated or offset
with hedges within one day. Changes in VaR between reporting periods are penerally due to changesin levels of exposure, volatilities and/for
corredations among asset classes,

The table below shovws the Vak of the Master Fund, the Bloomberg Barclays LS. Aggregate Band Index [the “Benchrnark®), as well as the ratia
between the two measures (3lso referred to as relative VaR) for both start and end of the review period.

Partfolio Banchmark® Ratia
April 30,2018 057 0.55 104
Aprll30,2017 055 .51 108

*  Bloomberg Barclays U.5. Aggregate Bond Ingex

The Factor risk breakdeown for the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period is presented in the table below. The risk decompasition
15 based on expected annualized velatlity (1 standard deviation). Active Risk for Estimated Tracking Error *TE") measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the portiodio and the benchmark using the current positions of each and the risk model's factor

covariance matrix,
| Portfolio Benchmark® Estimated TE
April 30,2008 | Total Rick 387 3T 540
April 30,2007 | Total Risk 3ATE 349 4,598
* Bloomberg Barclays LS. Aggregate Bond index
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(b) Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates, The
risk arises on financial instrurnents that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency inwhich they ane measured. A portion
of the funds’ assets are held in currencies other than the base curency with the result that the funds’ Staterments of financisl position can be
significantly affected by currency movements.

Mon-basa currency exposures (excluding the notional impact of forward currency contracts) are detailed in the tables below, Monetary assets
represent investments that can be converted into monetary terms in a very sheet period of time. In the tables below, Non-Monetary assets include
the fairvalue of the Master Fund's portfiolio investments. Monetary assets and liabilities include the undealized appreciation and depreciation of
TEA sale commitrnents and derivative contracts. Forward currency contracts are entered into as a method of reducing currency risk,

Forefgn Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2018
Assots Hen-Monatary Monetary Total
Argentine Peso 52463519 §— 52463819
Australian Dollar - 44, 4560 44,450
Braziian Feal — GO2.844 902,844
British Pownd 01,576 AM0,511 1,312,487
Canadian Dollar 475 BET 98,538 525,385
Eurg 20,933,441 1471517 22,904,958
Inadizn Rupes - 1515 1515
Japanese Yen - 272,878 IT2,BTH
Hew Zealand Dollar - 502,857 502,867
Worwegian Krone — 98,376 S8.3T5
South Adrican Rand - 113024 112,004
Swaedish Krona - 1819732 281573
Swiss Franc - BT E1.724
$24,725,523 $7,363,546 $32,089,068
Liabilities Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Australian Dollar 5= 51,159,518 51153608
Braglian Real = 533,759 532,759
British Pound = 1459428 1459428
Canadian Dollar = 362,765 362,766
Chinese Yuan {Ofishone) - .10 24,103
Euro - 5,322,545 5,322,545
Hong Kong Dioliar = 171343 171,343
Japanee Yen - E46,703 546,103
| Malaysian Ringgt = 358 35688
Meican Peso - 719556 T4, E56
Horwegian Krene - 135592 TaBE93
Russian Ruble — 93,554 93,934
Seuth Alrican Rand - 174,534 174,534
Swedish Krana - 526,351 526,351
Swiss Frame - 12,335 12,335
§— $11,998,456 $11,998,456
Currency Non-Monetary Monatary Tatal
| Asgentine Peso 5= $100.310 5100,310
Brittsh Pounsd - 858 A58
Canadian Dollar - 6 3
Crech Koruna - 48 A8
Eung - 4076 4,07
£— 5105,298 $105,298
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Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting peried April 30, 2007
Assets Kon-Monetary Manetary Total
Aystralian Dollar L 578,088 578,088
Brazilian Real 2,169,844 - 2,060,844
British Pound 70,855 175,289 450,155
Canadian Dallar 404,433 458,148 BTL,586
Chilean Pasa - BZ,273 82,273
Crech Koruna oy TEATT THSTT
Eure 17109482 B48,502 17,958,0m4
Hang Keng Dallar = 33,355 33,355
Hungarian Forint - 71,598 T1,6548
Indian Rupes - 360,533 360,833
Indfomesian Rupiah - B2457 2497
Japarese Yen - 1202 102
Hew Zealand Dollar - L107710 1,107,710
Horwegian Kiane - FrER L] prERCE]
Sauth African Rand - 36,052 0,052
South Kerean Won - 4,016 4016
Sweedish Krona - 913,178 918,178
Swiss Franc . B2 a3 B2,132
Turkish Lira - 216,031 215,031
518,854,630 §4,023,E30 24,878,460
Liabilities Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Australiam Dollar G 5534928 5534,928
Erazilian Real - 58,674 58,674
British Pound = 638,002 H35.002
Canadian Dollar - 274,184 T4, 184
Czech Koruna - 157,245 157,245
Eurn - 1354082 1,354,082
Heng Kong Doliar - 34,119 34,115
Hungarian Forinl — 85,501 56500
indonesian Rupiah - 52138 52,138
Japanese Yen - 256,054 255054
Mexican Peso - 1007054 1017054
Worwegian Krone - 105,397 105,397
Sangapoe Dollar - 135,596 135,896
Sputh African Rand - &, EA 64,544
South Korean Won - 354,065 354,065
Swedssh Krona - 129070 128,010
§— 55,453,057 55,453,057
Currency Non-Monetary Monetary Total
British Paund 5 SEE2TH 568,273
Canadian Dollar - [ 3
Eura - 22 212
Horweglan Krone i {23} e
$— $l68,083) $le8,083)
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(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will flucteate because of changes in market
interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates. Short-term
securities are less sensitive to interest rate changes than longer-term securities, but they alse usually offer lower yields. A large partion of the
Master Fund’s financial assets and liabilities are debt instruments with floating interest rates, which, in the Manager's opinion, are generally less
sensitive to interest rabe changes but may decling invalue if their interest rates do not rise as much, or as quickly as interest rates in general,
Conversely, floating rate instruments will not generally increase in value if interest rates decline, Changes in interest rates will also affect the
amount of interest income the Master Fund eams on its floating rate investrments.

High yield securities risk

The Master Fund irvests in fied income securities rated Baa3 or lower by Moody's or BBR- or lower by SEP [commonly known as “junk” of “high
yield® bonds). These securities ane considered speculative and, while generally providing greater income than investment in higher-rated secu-
rities, involwe preater risk of principal and income (including the possibility of default or bankruptey of the issuers of such securities) and may
imeobve greater volatility of price (especially during periods of economic uncertainty or change] than securities in the higher rating categories.
Because yields vary over time, na specific level of income can ever be assured, These lower-rated, high yielding fixed income securities penarally
tend to reflect economic changes (and the outlook for economic growth], short-term corporate and industry developments and the market's
perception of their credit quality (especially during times of adverse publicity) to a greater extent than higherrated securities which react prirmarily
te fluctuations in the general level of interest rates (although these lower rated fimed income securities are also affected by changes in intenest
rates). In the past, economic dawnturns or an increase in interest rates have, under certain circumstances, caused a higher incidence of defautt by
the issuers of these securities and may do 5o in the future, especially in the case of highly leveraged issuers.

Payment risk

The issuers of debt securities held by the Master Fund may be able to call a bond or prepay principal due on the securities, particularty during
periods of declining interest rates. The Master Fund may not be able to reinvest that principal at attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Fund, and the Master Fund may |ose any premium paid, The Master Fund would also lose the benefit of faling interest rates on price of the prepaid
bond. On the ather hand, rising interest rates may cause prepayments to occur al slower than expected rates. This efectively lengthens the
rmatusities of the affected securities, making them more sensitive to interest rate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value more volatile.
Securities subject to prapayment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rates decling, and may offer greater potential for loss
when interest rates rise,
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The interest rate profile of the Statements of financial position at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2018, categorized by maturity dates, is
presented below [does not include Comman Stocks fair value of $104,328)

Less than Over Mon-interest

Lygar 1-5 yuars 5 yoars bearing Total
Assets
Cashand cash equivalents 5= - 5- 26,016 586,016
Sales of investments awalting
setthement - i = 95,109,773 95,109,773
Subscriptions of units swaiting
settlement - - - LET8. 258 1ET8.258
Receivable for variation margin
on lulures contracts 11895 - - - 11,855
Interest and other receivables - - - 5,775,963 5775963
Financial Assets al sk value
through prolit o loss B2.269.935 54451171 555,602,504 3702492 696,256,502
Total assets £82,301,830 554,451,171 £555,802,924 £107,102,502 £799,658,427
Liabilities
Purchases of investments
#waiting seitlement S— 5— — 5162,327,549 4162327549
Redemptions ol units awaiting
settlement - - - ET4.9TR 674978
Payable for variation mangin
ancentrally cleared swap
CONIBCLS 3441 - - - 31441
Collaterad on certain derivative
contracts, atvalue 330,000 68,209 1,251,545 =t 1,630,844
Payable far management fees - - - 1,341,065 1,341,068
Payaile for custody and
adminkstrative fees - - - 6,539 96,539
Other accrued cxpenses = - - Erph: £ ] Erif -k
Financlal Liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 641,730 T.731,238 112 BE5 685 3,755,162 124,993,815
Total liabilities fexchuding
met azsels attributable to
helders of redeemable units) £993,171 57,799,537 £114,117,230 $168,523, 276 $291,433,214
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The interest rate profile of the Statements of financial position at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2017, categorized by maturity dates, is
presented below:

Lids than Oer MNon-interest

1year 1-5years 5years bearing Tatal
Assits
Cash and cash equivalents 51,115,835 §— 5— $4,273732 45,300,427
Sales of investmaents awaiting
settement - = - 2TL 125,260 T TI5IED
Subscriptions of units awasting
settlement - - - 1,216,036 1,216,036
Recitnvable bor variation margin
on centrally cleared swap
contracts 50,154 = - - 50,264
Interest and other receivables - - - 7.123,169 7123169
Financial Assets at falr value
through profit or loss 44,843,874 62235767 853,657,884 3,196,536 564,034,461
Total assets $48,010,833 562,295,767 453,697,854 §288,535,133 £1,250,539,617
Liabilitles
Purchases ol inestments
Fwaiting settiement = §— 5— $347.886,950 $347,886,950
Redempticns of units awaiting
settlement - - - 560,500 560,500
Payable forvariation mergin on
futuires CORLTBCLS 25510 — — — 15573
Collateral on certain defivative
contracts, at valug 350,914 26634 6ELITS - 108,123
Payable for management fees - - - 1,507,381 1,507,381
Payable 1o custodian - - - 8 .0a3 68,083
Payable for custody and
adeministrative fees - - - 8,481 0481
Cither accroed expenses — - - 51 405,514
Financial Liabitiies a1 fair value
theugh prolit or loss - 1,409,704 332,150,071 3,245,887 336,806,662
Total liabilities {excluding
nat assets attributable to 1
heldars of redeamable units) 5416493 $1,736,338 5332,812,246 §353,768,795 4$688,733,873

Mon-base mterest rate exposires lexcluding the notianal impact of interest rate swap contracts) are detalled in the tables abowve., Interest rate
Swap contracts are entered into as a method of reducing interest rate risk.

April 30
Interest Income 2018 | 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 4255681 | 5133470
Debit securities at fair value through prodit or loss:
Desigrated at Lir value through peolit or boss 31,555,384 | 37,580,427
Total $31,801,085 | §37,714,897

* The Master Fund had no interest income from investrmenss in affiliated isswers bor the periods ending April 30, 2008 and 2017,
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(d) Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The main liability of the funds

is the redemption of any units that investors wish to sell. The Master Fund's financial instruments that include investments in OTC derivative
contracts, if any, which are not traded in an organized public market, may be illiquid. As a result, the Master Fund may not be able to promptly
liquidate some of thelr investments in these instruments at an amount chose to their fair value in order to reet their liquidity requirements or to
respond to specific events such as detevioration in the credit worthiness of any particularissuer,

To minimize or mitigate the effect of liguidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-position the portfolio or adjust the
allecation to obtain a higher concentration of mone liquid and viable securities as detailed in the imestment abjective.

Pursuant to the funds’ investrment palicy, the Manager is to monitor an an ongoing basks the funds’ liquidity position.

The tables below analyze the funds’ assets and liabilitias into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statements of
financial position date to the contractual maturity date, The amounts.in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, (Table values do

not include Commaon Stocks fair vakse of 5104, 328: 2017 SNil)

Ligquidity Risk April 30, 2008
Loss than Greatar than

1Menth 1-3Months I Manths Total
Total Assets £155,089,246 §24,211,528 $620,357,553 $T99,658,427
Lizbilities
Purchases of imestments awaiting settlement 162,337,549 - - 162,327,549
Redemplions of units awaiting settlement B144978 - - 574578
Payable lor variation margin on centrally cleared swap
oontracts 3h441 - - 31441
Collateral on certain derhvathe contracts, at value 330,000 - 13198494 163 Ea4
Payable for management fees 1,341,085 - - 1,341,065
Payable for custody and administrative fees 55,533 - = 96,538
CQther accrued expenses 327983 - — LT3
Financial Liabiines a1 fair value through profit o loss 799,127 3,246,145 120,947,943 134,993 815
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable wnits® 508,329,541 - - 508,329,541
Total §674,248,823 $3,246,145 $122,267,T87 5799762755
Liquidity Risk April 30, 2007

Less than Groater than

1 Month 1-3 Months 3IMonths Total
Total Azsets $318,144,551 $14,611,404 $917,783,262 $1,250,539,617
Uiabilitles
Purchases of irvestments awaiting setthement 347885950 - - 347 BBE.550
Redemnptions ol units awaiting settlement 560,500 - - 560,500
Payable for varlation masgin on futures contracts 18579 - - 25579
Collateral on certaln derivative contracts, al value - - 138723 1318723
Payable lar management lees 1,507,381 = = 1,507,381
Payable o custodian BB OB3 — - 68,083
Payable for custedy and administrative fees 50,481 - - 90481
Other aconed capenses 409,514 = = 409,514
Financial Liabilities at fair value thicugh prolit o loss 832272 2413615 333,560,775 335,806,662
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units” 561,505,744 = — 561805144
Tatal $913,186,504 52,413,615 I 334,939,498 §1,250,539,617

* Met Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is a puttable Eabdity which is classified as bess than one month but which s non-contractual and could

extend indefinitely.
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(e} Credit risk
The funds will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom they trade and will also bear the risk of settlernent default. The risk of default on
securities traded is considered minimal as delivery of securities sold is only made when the broker has received payment. Payment is madeona
purchase when the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.

The funds seek to mitigate their credit risk by undertaking transactions with braker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Manager
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers to be established. Risks associated with derivative contracts, i any, involve the possibility that
the counterparty to the contract may default on its obligation to perform,

The fair value of collateral that has been accepted by the Master Fund related to cutstanding repurchase agreements is $39,995, 230
[2017:530,959,040),

The Master Fund generally invests in financial assets which have a credit rating assigned by well-known rating agencies.

Percentape of et Assets

Rating April 30

2018 2017
AR 32.35% 33.14%
Wu oI =
AR 0.25 0.60
BBEE/Baa 8,85 106
B8/8a | e 128
BB 20,08 213
CCC/Caa and below 118 am3
Al 594 228
A-1 1469 542
Unrated 763 {571)

* I gnder to monitor the oredit quality of the “Unrated ™ underlying debt securities, the Manager, on the basis of the internal research, preparesits own ratings for
thevaricus instrurnents forwhich pubcally available credit ratings are ot available, The Manager reviews the key inancial metrics of the issue and structural
features of the instruments in order 1o caloulate the implied ratings Bor each of these instruments. Cash, derivative instrumenis.and net other assets are shown
in the Linrated category. Payables and recedvables for TEA mort gage commitments are included in the Unrated category and may resull i negative weights,
Unrated delbt securities have been assessed by the imestment manager to have credit quadity condistent within B/B and CCC/Caa and below rated securities.

Credit qualities are shown as a percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of Apeil 30, 2018 and 2007. A bond rated Baa or higher [Prime-2 or
higher, for short-term debt) is considened investment grade, This chart reflects *best” ratings between Moody's, Standand & Poor's (5&F) and
Fitch, showing ratings based on S&P lettering, Ratings and portiolio credit quality will vary over Binve.

The funds themsehes have not been rated by an independent rating agency.

The continued credit crists and related twemoll in the global financial system has had and may continue to have an impact on the funds’ business
and the funds' financial condition, The credit crisis could have an impact on the Master Fund’s remaining securities if other counterparties are
forced to file for bankruptcy or are otherwise unabie to perform their obligations, The funds are exposed to credit risk, which is the risk thata
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when they fall due.

The funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
and ather receivable balances. The hunds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the pratection seller or as the protection buyer,

i the fair value of the derivative contracts. This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master netting arrangement between the Master
Fund and the counterparty. Where the Master Fund & a seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund

may be required to make is equal to the notional amount of the relevant derivative contract.

The Master Fund is a party to 1504 (international Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master Agreements that govern OTC derhvative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forwand Transaction Agreements that govern transactions involving maortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may result in delayed delivery (Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entered into from time to time,
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties” general obligations, representations, agreements,
collateral requirements, events of default and early termination. With respect to certain counterparties, in accardance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted o the Master Fund is held in 2 segregated account by the funds’ custodian. The Master Fund's collateral is
delivered to the counterparty by either pledging or transferring collateral to the counterparty. Collateral can be in the form of cash or debt secu-
rities issued by the U.5. Government or related agencies or other securities as agreed to by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requirements are determined based on the Master Fund's net position with each counterparty. With respect to ISDA Master Agreements,
termination events applicable to the Master Fund may occur upon a decline in the Master Fund's net assets below a speciied threshold over a
certain periad of time, Termination events applicable to counterparties may occur upon a declng in the counterparty’s long-term or short-term
credit ratings below a specified level. In each case, upon oczurrence, the ather party may elect to terminate early and cause settiement of all
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derivative and foreign exchange contracts outstanding, meluding the payment of any losses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determined by the terminating party, Ary decision by one or mone of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early termination could
impact the Master Fund's futune dervative activity.

At the close of the reporting period, the Master Fund had a net [ability position of 57,732,671 (2017: $2,608,763) on open derhvative contracts
subject to the Master Agreements. Collateral posted by the Master Fund at period end for these agreements totaled 59,229,057 (2007: 52,168,971)
and may include amounts related to unsettled agreements.

The Master Fund's main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 10% of the fair
value of favorable contracts outstanding are with a single issuer, with the exception of Federal National Mortgage Assaciation, which were vakeed
at5174,075,249 or 25.56% of fair value and Government National Mortgage Association, where were valued at 594,719,600 or 13.91% of fairvalue
atthe end of the reporting period April 30, 2018 (2017: Federal National Mortgage Association which were valued at $441,519, 262 or 46.22% of
Tairvalue),

The funds are exposad to credit risk associated with the Custodian who holds 2 portion of the funds® financial assets and ULS. cash balances. The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary operations for the Master Fund's investment transactions. The Custodian also provides some of the
short-term bending facilities to the Master Fund. The funds were also exposed 1o Custodian risk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custodian
has failed to treat correctly in accordance with procedures agreed to by the funds.

The maximurm expasure 1o credit risk 25 of the reporting date can be analyzed as follows at the end of each reporting peripd:

April 30

Instrument Type 2018 | 2017
Financial assets and labilities at fair value theough profit of ks comprised of

Fived income investments. 5630,695,542 555,064,760
Repurchase agreements 35,211,000 30,352,000
Derivative assels’ 35,243,881 10,549,238
Cash and cash equivalents EB6.016 5,350,427
Sales of investrnents awaiting setllement 25,100.773 272725260
Subscriptions of units swaiting settlement 1,678,358 116036
Interest and other recehvables 5775563 7133168
FRecetvable lor variation margin on futures cantracts 11,895 -
Recefvable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts = 50,264

" Derivalive assets ane comprised of forward conracts, OTC swap contracts, lorward premium swap option contracts, wistlen options, and written swap oplions.
The maxinuaim Crigi risk onwrithen options and writhen Swag cptions is evaluated on & security basis, based on the value of premiums paid on esch security.
Thie maximum cfedit fisk on cerlain derhvative assets is mitigated a5 a resull of the Master Fund's enforceable master netting arrangernant (Notes 8 and 17)

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit rating ssued by Moody's at year end of 2018 Aa3 (2017 Aad). Deutsche Bank AG had a credit
rating issued by Moody's at year end of 2018 Baa2 (2017: Baa2),

Senior loans are purchased or sold on a when-issueed or delayed delivery basis and may be settled a month of mare after the trade date, which
from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash balances; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities,
Senior laans can be acquired through an agent, by assignment from another holder of the loan, or as a participation interest in another halider's
portion of the loan, When the Master Fund imests in a loan or participation, the funds are subject to the risk that an intermediate participant
between the Master Fund and the besrower will f2il to meet its obligations to the Master Fund, in additicn to the risk that the borrower under the
loan may default on its obligations.

Pursusant to the funds’ imestment policy, the Manager is 1o monitor on an cagoing basis the funds’ credit pasition,

(f) Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may employ various investment techndques and instrements for investment purposes or for efficient portiolio management of
thedr assets for hedging against market movements, currency exchange, interest rate risks or otherwise, Any such instruments are used under
the conditicns and within the Emits lakd down by the Manager, The Master Fund utilized forwards, futures, oplions and swap contracis during the
reporting period, and any resulting pains or losses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive income.,

(g} Fair valuation estimation

The carrying value less impairment prevision of other recefvables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash fiow at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Master Fund for similar financial instruments,

Amendment to IFRS T “Financial Instruments: Disclasure ™ requires the Master Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
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= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Rabilities (Lewel 1)

+  Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for asset or Gability, either directly {that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices) (Level 2)

= Inputs for the asset or ability that are not based on obsenvable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Lewe| 3).

Thie kv in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
walue measurement in its entirety, If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that requine significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement inits entirety
requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes "observable” requires significant judgment by the funds, The funds consider observable data to be that
market data that is readily available, regulasly distributed or updated, reliable and vevifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively invalved in the relevant market.

Inwvestments whose values are based on quated market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1, include active listed equi-
ties, enchange traded derivatives, LS. government treasury bills and certain non-U.5. sovereign obligations. The Master Fund does not adjust the
quated price for these instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations
of alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include investment-grade corporate bonds and
certain non-LU.5, soveraign cbligations, listed equities and OTC derivatives, As Level 2 imestments include positions that are not traded in active
markets andjor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/fer nen-transferability, which are generally
basad on available market information.

For financial instruments forwhich there is no active market, the Master Fund may use internally developed models, which are ususlly based on
valuation methods and techniques penerally recognized as standard within the industry, Inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on
observable market data are classified within Level 3.
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The following table analyzes the fair value hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and Rabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting period April 30, 2018,
Fair Value — Financial assots Lavall Lavel 2 Lawvel 3 Total
Investment in securithes:
Cammon stocks:
Energy 5— 5104328 §— 104,328
Fingd Indormi
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, al value 320,000 1,319,844 - 1E35,844
Commrtible bonds and notes
Basic materizis - 98,300 - 98,300
Capital goods - 352203 - 352303
Communication services - 176,115 = 176,119
‘Consumer cyclicals - 61,283 — V61,283
Consumer saples = 245 = 08945
Energy - 160,685 - 280,885
Financials - 204 6T9 - 2679
Health carg - TE4 823 — Th4 823
Technology - 2343211 - 2343211
Transportation - 98,071 - sg071 |
Corparate bonds and nates
Basic materials — 18,971,984 — 18,971,584
Capital goods = 1756404 - TI56454 |
Communication services = 16,445,803 = 16,445,803 |
Consumer eyclicals - 23,213.84% - 23,213 846
Conswsmer staphes - 9,743,286 - 9,743,786
Enery - 34,508,764 100 34,508 854
Financials - 16,743,376 - 16,743,376
Hizzlth cae - 13,135,959 - 13,135,559
Technology - 6421881 = B.431,601
Transgortation - 455,851 - 455,851
utilities and power - 4,244,403 — 4,244,403
Foreign government and agency bonds and notes - 44946,109 - 44845000
ngar-bached sepuritles
Agency collateralined mortgage obligations - 97,626,700 - AT626,700
Commercial morigage-backed securiiies - 68230938 - B8,230,934
Residential mortgage-backed securities - B0527.265 = B0,527.265
Purchased options outstanding, - 1111511 - L1MLELL |
Purchased swap agticas outstanding - 11,711,239 - 0723 |
Senios loans
Eissic matenisls = 413,839 = 413838
Capital goods - LE3LS%0 - 1631599
Consumer cyclicals - 2490,448 - TAB0AA8
Consyumier staphes — 435,758 — 435,758
Energy - 1613331 - 1,613,330
Health care - 112575 - 1TL.575
Technology - 938,344 - 938,344
Shart-leve irvestiments - 73,445,067 - 73,445,057
L.5. government and agency mortgage obligations - 158,656,091 = 158 655,051
Total investment in securitios 320,000 652,409,202 100 682,729,302
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Falir Value — Financial assats conl. Lavell Level 2 Leval 3 Tetal
Dorivatives:

Forwand contracts S 53712492 §— 5312452
Forward premium Swap oplion contracts - 4,073,351 - 4073351
OTC Total return swap contracts. - 331,688 - 333888
OTC Credit default contracts - 551,127 - S51.1 07
Total derivatives - 13,531 458 = 13,631,458
Total Financial azsets ot fair value through profit or loss $696,360,850
FalrValue — Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts = £12,023,960 5= 512,023,950
Centrally cleared tatal return swap contracts - 1,303,256 - 1303256 |
Fulures contracts 162,213 - - 12213 |
Fair Valug — Financial liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Lowel 3 Total
Derivatives:

Forward contracts 5— 53,755,162 5= 53,755,162
Forward premiumm Swap oplion contracts - 3,673,953 - 14873.533
OTC Inlerest rate Swap conlracts - 3488 - 3688
OFC Total return swap contracts - 411,961 - 411,961
OTC Credit defaull comracts - 9873529 - 9,673,559
Total derivatives - 17,918,333 - 17,918,333
THA sale commitments - 92,664,301 - 92,664,301
Writhen oplions autstanding - 1,330,362 - 1,330,363
Written swap options outstanding - 13,080,815 - 13,080,819
Total Financlal labilities at fair value through profit or loss $124,993,815
Falr Vialue — Financial liabilities Laval1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Centrally cleaned inlerest rate Swap conisacis §— £8,752,751 - $8,751,751
Centrally cleared total return swagp contracts - 1,506,257 - 1506257
Centrally cleared credit default contracts = 1,1369T7 - 1136977
Futises contracls 209892 = = 852

Al other assets and liabilities not measured at fairvalue but forwhich fairvalue is disclosed are classified as Leved 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilites and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techniques.

During the reporting period, transfers within the fair value hierarchy, if amy, did not represant, in the aggregate, more than 1% of the funds’ net
assets measured as of the end of the period. Transfers are accounted for using the end of period pricing valuation method.
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The following table analyzes the fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the
reporting period April 20, 2017,

Fair Value — Financial assets. Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Imvestment in securities:
Fied Income:
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, at value = 51,3m8,723 5— 51,378,723
Convertible bonds and nates
Emérgy - 130,718 - 130,718
Conporate bonds and notes
Basac matersls - 32505870 - 12515839
Capetal goods - 12,281 642 - 12,281 642
Commurication services - 22,141 589 - 12,141 585
Conumer cyclicals - 26,961,133 - 26,561,133
Consumer staples - T.E25,64T - T.B25,64T
Enqu_y = 35,699,178 101,600 36,000,778
Financials - 26,124,311 - 26,124,111
Health care - 11,831,376 - 11,831,376
Technology o BASTH4 - BAST A4
Transportation - 1,424,295 - 1424295
Utiities and power - 6127638 - 6727639
Foreign government and agency bonds and nates - 47,681,664 - 42,681,664
Mortgape-backed securities
Apency collateralized mortgage obligations - 106,525,697 - 106,525,667 |
Commarcial menigage-backid securities - 53,743,173 - gomITE |
Residential morigage-backed seciities - 65,666,483 - 65,666,483
Purchased options outstanding - 2,278,198 - 2,178,199
Purchased swap options outsianding - 3,623,251 - 3523351
Senior koans
Bagic materisls - 585 556 - E45,656
Capital goods — 1,269,826 - 1,269,826
Communication services - 515,832 =, 515,632
Consumer cyclicals - 5,047,506 - 5047605
Consumer staples — 403,671 - 403,671
Enirgy - 603,539 - B03.55%
Financials - 289476 o= TRIATE
Health care - 3689857 = 359,857
Technalegy - 1.452,510 - 1,452,510
ShOFt- Lerm iesLiments - 42,036,853 - 42,035,853
LS. powernrnienl and agency morlpipe obligstions - 357,750,363 - 357191363
Total Investment in securities | £ 955,315,160 101,600 955,416,760
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Failr Valug — Financial assats cont Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Derivatives:

Forward contracts. 5— 53,196,936 §= 53,196,936
Forwird premium swap aption contracts - 562,175 - 562,175
OTC Total retusrn swap conlracts - 515,985 - 315,385
OTEC Credit default contracts. - 4,342 505 - 4,343 505
Total derivatives - 8,617,701 - 8,617,701
Total Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss $964,034,451
FairValue — Fimancial assets Levell Lewel 2 Level 3 Tetal
Cash equivalents 5= 51116655 §= 51,116,655
Cemrally cleared intenest rate Swap contracts - 5,228,419 - 5228419
Fair Value — Financial liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivatives:

Forward contracts S 53,245,887 = §3.245,E87
Forward premaum swap oplion coniracls - 520,286 - 520,298
OTC Interest rate swap contracls - Bl6.A58 - 16650
OTC Total return Swap contracts e 194,191 - 194,191
OTC Credit default contracts = 6,303,161 - 6,303,161
Taotal derivatives - 11,080,195 - 11,080,155
TEA sale commitments - 321,039,585 - 321,029,686
Writien options cutstanding - 1,524,883 - 1524853
Wiritlen swap options outstanding - 3171898 - 3,171,858
Total Financial labilities at fair value through profit or boss 5336,806,662
FairValue — Financial liabilities | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts 5= £5,560.353 5= 45,650,253
Centrally cleared credit default contracts. - 2,574,023 - 251,003
Fures CoMracts 189,831 - - 185,831

All other assets and Habilities not measured at fairvabue but for which fair value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdewn of assets and liabilities and o Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techniques.

During the reporting period, transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy, if any, did not represent, in the aggregate,
rmone than 19 of the funds” net assets measured as.of the end of the period. Transfers are accounted for using the end of pericd pricing
valuation method.

The follewing is 8 reconciliation of Level 3 assets as.of the close of the reporting peviod Apeil 30, 2017

Change in net

Balance as Accrued unralized Balance as
Inwestmants in of April 30, | discounts/ Realized | apprecistion) Cost of Proceeds |Total transfers (Totaltransfers | of April 33,
securities 2016 | premiums Edrm:cﬁ]l (depreciation)d | purchases | fromsales | intoLevel 37 | outof Level 31 0T
Corporate
bonds and notes 5= §— b= §— 51000 S S100.500 &= 5101600
Mortgage-backed
secusities. 13572683 | ()LISTE0E) 64,8239 128284 —  [LT3TA43) ] = 110,830,677} =
Totals §13,572,683 | 5(1,197,6856) 564,639 §128,284 S100 S[L,73T443)| 510,500 | 5(10,830,677)| $101,600

1 Trarsfers ding the reposting period are accounted for using the end of pericd markat value and traaslers sut indudevaluations whene s secondary pRcng source
was obtained forceriain secwities, Suchvaluations invohve cerain inputs and estimates that wene unobsenvablie at the end of the reporting period.

# Does notinclude unrealized related to Level 3 securities still held at period end, Total change in unrealized appreciation/{depreciation] for secudities [including
Level 1 and Level 2 can be found inthe Statements of comprehensive income .
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Financial Assets at fair value through profitor loss:

April30
2018 2017

Finarcial assets held Bor trading;

Cash equivalents §— $1.116,695

Repurchase agreements 39,211,000 30,352 00k

LS. treadury bills and short-term fortign povernment securitics 34,234,067 11,584,853

Derivatives 13,631 456 867,701

Collateral on certain devivative cantracts 1,533,844 1318113
Total financial assets held for trading. 88,716,369 53,149,972
Designated at fairvalue through prafitor loss atinception:

Dbt securities GOTE44,481 912,001,184
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including cash equivalents) $55E,350,850 £365,1851,158

il 30
2018 01T

Oaher nel changes in [air value on inancial assets at feir value thraugh prolit of less:
Realized 51,364,002 5[1EALLTSE)
Chiange in unirealized 8,156,337 34,E50,175
Total gains/[losses) £8,450,349 23,280,000
Other net changes in Tairvalue on assets held for trading $33,814 486 $22,586,T10
Other net changes in (air value on assets designated an fair valse through profit or loss (24,354 137) 651,310
Total gains/{losses] §9,460,349 §23,280,020

({h} Capital risk management

The capital of the funds is represanted by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, The amount of net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis, as the funds are subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the
discretion of unitholders, The funds’ abjective when managing capital & to safeguand the funds” ability to continue as a gaing concern in order
to provide returns for unitholders and maintain a capital base to support the development of the imsestment activities of the Master Fund. The
Manager, at its discretion, may scale down a significant redemption that it deems would materially prejudice the management of the funds in
accondance with its investment objectives.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the funds’ policies are 1o perform the fallowing:

Maonitor the level of daily subscriptions and redemiptions relative to the assets it expects to be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
amount of distributions the funds pay to redeemable unitholders,
Redearn and issue new units in acconrdance with the constitutional dacuments of the funds, which include the ability to restrict redemptions
and require certain minimum holdings and subscriptions,

The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable unitholders.

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

{a) Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiiate of the funds, may be entitled to an annual fee of up to 2.00% for Class S Units and 0.60% for Class | Units payable out
of the assets of the Master Fund. For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the managerment fee was not assessed to Class 5 Units
associated with the Master Fund, The Manager will receive an annual fee of up to 1.60% for Class J Units and 1,009 for Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feeder Fund, per annum on the average monthly net assets of each Class of the Feeder Fund,

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam Internationa| Distributors, Ltd. (the Distributor), an affiliate of the funds, a fee as agreed between the Manager and
the Distributor out of the Manager's fee. The Distributor may share its fees with other parties such as other sub-distributors in such manner and to
such extent asit sees fit from time to time.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds [Cayman) 31

1447270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

it is currently expected that the total expensa ratio (excluding amortized organizational expense) for Class J Units will not exceed 1.80% and
Class M Units will not exceed 1.20% per annum of the average monthly Net AssetValue of the Feeder Fund. The Manager resenves the right to
mdify this total expense ratio at any time, At the end of the reparting period the Manager paid the Distributor 55,761,194 [2017: 56,286, 365).

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Funed Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman)] Limited (the Master Fund Trustee) is entithed to be paid out of
the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up to $22,500 per annum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased for various reasons
such as inflation without Unitholder consent as long as the fees ane still consideved to be at normal commercial rates.

Such fees will accrue daily and be paid quarterly in arvears, The Master Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasanable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Fund's assets,

Pursuant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, the Feeder Fund Trustee i entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.02%
per annuem on the average monthly Met AssetValue of the Feeder Fund up 19 560,000 per annum and subject to a 515,000 minimum per year. Such
fees will acerue daity and be paid quarterly in asreass. The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-ol-pocket expenses
incurred by the Feeder Funid Trustee in relation to the Feeder Fund out of the Feeder Fund's assets.

(b) Transactions with Non- Related parties

Custodian fees

TheManager shall pay to Stabe Street Bank and Trust Company (the Custodian), out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up to 0.10% per annum
an the average monthly Met Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daily and paid monthly in armears. The Manages shall also pay to the Custodian,
outof the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0, 10% per annum on the average monithly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund accrued daily and
paid monthly in amears, The Manager shall discharpe reasonable gut-of-pocket expenses payable to the Custodian out of the funds’ assets.

Sub-Accounting Agent feas

The Custodian has appointed State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd, (State Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in refaticn to the funds. For administrative services performed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
outof the assets of the Master Fund a fee up to 567,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund, Additional
rianthly per quate pricing fees will apply. This fee will acerue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-
pochet expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the funds” assets. The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the
assets of the Feeder Fund an administrative fee of approxdmately 5,000 per annum plus manthly per quote pricing fees. This feeis included with
the Custody fees on the Statements of comprehensive income, and will acorue daily and be paid monthlyin arrears. The Manager shall discharge
reasonable out-af-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the funds’ assets.

The funds may enter into expense offset arrangements with State Street whereby State Street’s fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances. For the years ended April 30, 2018 and April 30, 2017, the funds’ expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset arrangements.

Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Europe ple [the Transfer Agent), cut of the assets of the funds, a fee based on the volurne of transfer agent activity,
subject to a $300,000 minirurm per annum on the Master Fund and a 575,000 minimum per annum on the Feeder Fund, accrued daity and paid
monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund's assets.

Other Expenses

In addition, each respective fund bears all ather expenses incidental to its operations and business, incheding, amongst others all compliance
costs and the fees of its auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; interest and commitment fees on loans and debt balances; any income,
withhalding or other taxes; cost of communication with Unitholders and prospective investors.

Each fund may be reguired to pay subscription and redemption charges in connection with imestments in other investment companies. Each
fund may be required to pay brokerage commissions in relation to portfolio transactions.

10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

The Manager voluntarily reimbursed the fund 5270,805 for an operational enror relating to an unintended excess cash balance which occurred
during the reporting pericd.

11, MARKET CONDITIONS

In the nosmal course of business, the Master Fund trades financial instruments and enters. into financial transacticns where risk of potential loss
exists due to changes in the market [market risk) or failure of the contracting party to the ransaction to perfiorm (credit risk). The Master Fund may
be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution or other entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or epen transactions will default
as discussed in previous notes,
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fedlpwing tables summarize any derivatives, repunchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at the end of the reporting
periods April 30, 2018 and 2017, that are subsect 1o an enforceable master netting agreement or similar agreement. For securities lending
transactions o barrowing ransactions associated with securities sold short, if any, see Mote 3, For financial reporting purposes, the
Master Fund does not olfzat financial assets and financial liabddities that are subject to the master netting agreements in the Staterments of
financial position.

: 2 2 z \ " 5 £
£ f 3% : gg
| e
April 30, 2018 d= & : ﬁ i x
Assels:
OTC Inberest rate swap contracts™ i— - 5— 5— | 5—
Contrally cloared intorest rate swap conlracts® - - ZUTT6 - | -
OTC Total retuen swap contracts™ 13,839 28,386 i = | -
Centrally cleared 1otal reurn Swap contracts! - - 57,45 | -
OTC Credit default contracts - protection sold™ - - - - | -
OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased - - - - | 210,503
Centralty cleared oredit default contractsh == = 1318 = =
Fufures contracts! = — = - -
Forward currenty contracts” 339,554 335441 = 525,562 ~
| Forward premium swapoptioncontracts” 1,424,715 AT | - enga -
| Purchased swap options™™ 2,038,340 e —| e | -
Purchased options™ = = = = =
Repurchase agresments™” - - - | = | -
| Total Assets S3BIETSZ | 5640,304 52,178,092 52,178,454 | $270,503
| Uabilities: i ;
| OTCinenest rate swap conracts™ = — =} - - | -
Contrally cleared intorest rafte #wap confractst - - 2,135,533 - | -
OTC Todal return swap contracts™ - 154,159 = | 1318 | -
| Censralby cleaned tonal return swap contracts® - - e = =
| OTC Credit defaull contracls - pratection sold™ 268,857 - - - 338072
| OFC Credit default contracts - protection puschased™ - - - - =
| Centrally cleared credit default comracis - - - - -
| Futures contracts! - - - - -
| Forwand curfency coniracts’ 474,258 343645 - In4804 -
Forward premium swap option conleacts” 125315 333,362 - EITA11 -
| wiritien swap options® 1,829,810 250,768 - 1,986,575 -
| Writien spissast = . = = =
Toullisbilites o CSHESLOTS | S1006344 | SZIBG8M4  $300,040 §328072
' Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets $(36,327) | SI4S6640) SIBTTZ)  S(623.486) 557,569
Total financial instruments received (pledgad)™t S(34327) S456.640) 5= Sl823,486) $—|
. Total cash collateral received (pledged)™t 5— | 5— | §— | [ 5=
Het amount 5— | §— 508,772} 5 $157,569)
Controed cofieters! recefved {ncluding TEA comemitments]™ 5= | 5= = 5= 5= |
Uncontroled collaional received S | Fost 5= 5= b
Coflarerl {pledged] fncluding TEA commitmenis)* SL0TTE) | 554057 5— 501,130,115 =1

*Excludes promiyrms, i any. Inciuded in Financial assets andfor Financial liabilities at fair value through prolit o loss on the Statemants of finsncial position,
“included with Financial assets and/for Financial liabilities at fair value through peofit of kess on the Statements ol financial position,
Thdditional collateral may be requined from certamn brokers based on individual agreements.

*Covered by master netting agroement (ot &),

=Anyover-collaterafization of tatal nancial and denvative net assets is not shown, Collateral may mchude amounts retated to unsettied agreaments.
Yincludes current day's vasiation margin only a5 reported on the Statements of financial position, which is not collsteralised. Collateral pledged for inntisl margin
an futures contracts and contrally cleared swap contracts, which is not included in the table above, amounted 10 524,577 and 516,583,013, respectively.
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= 2 2 g ;
a‘ A : E E : r1 g\ B
i i 14| °
5a3 E 2 &
§— §— 5 §— 5— [ [ §—
- 13447 - - - - — -
128,062 - - 116,254 - 80T 8273 ==
178N - = :-5_5,4:5 = - 1480953 FETR I
236962 n = 473,187 72812 473535 - =
- - - A48 314 - 7100 - -
s53587 | - - 1,458,856 = 4578260 - -
= - - - - 1,111,611 - -
$1,195,348 $13,447 [ %3,202,039 5272412 §7,472,564 51,489,216 5231,302
- = - - 3688 - —
- | 5116 - - | - = <= =
35,188 - 243 gogsr | - name | 130 -
= - s — -~ - I . -
2,776,872 - - 1,840,198 - - | zis1em 59,090
== ' = —— . — == | =1 == I
s - - — | s . ]__ —_ -
_ 18L4s6 - - | meam 4,528 mam | - | =
- - - 523,970 - TI05 | - -
509,550 = - 3,006,668 - 3,757,505 - -
5 = = = = 1,330,352 - -
$3,607,076 535,116 5343 56,236,043 | 586538 $6,278,190 £2, 264,056 £50,000
$[L,210,728) | £[22,669) §{243) §{3,056,004} $175,884 51,184,394 §(775,7300 | 517,123
8$(1,211,728) | S= | §m $13,056,004} $112,655 51,087,476 ST75730) | $119,713
$— | 5— | 5— 5— | 5— §- — $-
§= 5[22,669) $lz43) §— $63,220 5106918 5— $52,509
5— §— 5 [ 5112655 | 1087478 G £119,713
5= 5= = $= o §— §— e
S2045.815) | = - | 53119833 | 5= 5= 5i823,090) 5
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f 'g £
2 g el 1
Sl e e L

i i — 5 e

= . & = = = i 2,131,173

= - - - - - | - 332858

- - - - - - | - 57048

. e = o = — : == ==

= AT 48 - - - - - #,554469

- =5 = E - = = 3318

ITTIR | - - - - - - Inra
| e ] = 5555 456513 k) = B|ost | amaam
= | 324,900 - = = x - 4073351

= 1,707,455 - = = % | = | e

= = = = = =0 . 1111610

38,211,000 = -~ N - - | - 39,211,000
439,128,718 52,372,000 §466,650 466,912 $183,246 576 $34,031 §66,916,307
- - - - - - - 1583

- —~ = = = - - 2171848

= — = = = = i 411861

= = = = = = - 51,331

- 1aT0m3 | = = - - - BSi5.2T1

| =] — - | — — — = =
' 5823 = = | = = = = san
= = 150685 | 535,126 wegm | — 142,197 1,755,162

L - 344,391 - | - - . = 38735933
| - 1,568,030 = = = 22,504 = 13,080,819
= = = = - = = = | 135038
$5623 | §3,384666 | SISLESS | SSISI26 | SIZ9M | SARSOA | S142am | §33,600050

| 535,222,895 | 5(1,002,663) 5314,965 5(68,214) 5{89,478) 5[42,428) S[104.161) | 533,316,248

| 3222895 | 5(1012,663) - 560,957 | ${89,478) - 5—
5= §— §314,965 | 5= $— 5— §— |
&= £ 5= | 5(7,257) 5 5[42,428) 5(104,161)

o 5— §320,000 e 5— 5— 5- 51639344
539,555,000 f= 5= - §= §= 5 538935200 |
5— 5i1.216,522) 5 5160,957) s{178,572) 5— 5 ${0,220,057) |
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il R g

% i Er = % a i-‘-:

3 § i3 i § 55
April 30,2017 !i a8 il-’“g g g & E
Adsets: |
OTC Interest rate swap comracts” = * | §— 5— i— s— — 5- 5=
Centrally cleaned inlenest rase |
Lwdp contracts! - - 1,353,505 - - -
OTC Total return Swag contracts” *** | 158 138807 | - 15548 25,558 = | 152712
OTC Credit defauil contracis” = * | - = — - 1,538,798 i 1088907
Centrally cleared credit I
defaull contracts? - - - = - = -
Futuees contracts® - - | - - - - -
Forward currpncy confracts’™ * BAT,453 w7338 | - | 316,390 | 163,829 - 517,609
Forward premium swap option | | I I
conracts* * 201,024 19,150 | - | - - - | 12820
Purchased swap ogticns™ * | 213402 616,430 - 1ATSIES | - - | 113,508
Purchased options** * | - - - = - - | -
Repigchase agresments™ - - - - - - -
Total Assets 51,062,114 51,011,585 51,353,909 $1,817,903 $2,118,225 L= 51,925,648
LiabRities: [ |
OTC Inberest rale swap contragts’ ™" " - - - - - - -
Centrally cleared imerest rate
Swap conbracks® - - 1283268 - - - -
OTC Tatal return Swap contracts™ ™ | 1,870 4,538 - - 38,163 | 4,801 A2 408
OTC Credit delault contracts” ** 258,204 - - - 1ATI54 - 1462159
Centrally choared eredil [
delauly contracls’ | - | - 0,377 - - - -
Fustures contracts? [ — | - - - - - -
Forvward curency contracis™ * | 200,184 174523 - 289,311 184,526 - 313582 ]
Forward premium svapoption. | N '
contracts™ 175217 45,826 ~ - - - WazE |
Vritten swap options® * 237,208 633,061 - 584788 | = - | 11L164 |
| Weiten options”™” I * = = = - 2l
Total Liabilities | §ETL,B80 §918,966 51,303,645 | $1,274,099 $3,101,953 | $4,801 52,000,661
s N T T T R |
Net Assots | 5185434 43,817 580,264 5543,804 HaraTas) 54,801) §(75,015)
Total financial instruments | | |
received [pledped)™? | £173,438 LT 5= 5543804 5{920,344)| §— £34,051
Total cash collateral
recobved [pledped)™? = 5— 5— §— 5— §— $=
hetameunt | 515956 592,617 350264 | 5= | §(43,364) Ham01)  5{109,066)
Controfied collatara recehnd
fnchudting TEA commitmancs" SiT3438 §— §— £544,100 | §— §— $34,051
Uncoatralied cotatenal recenad | F = Lt §= | S 5 §=
Colareral {pledged] inckicing [
TBA commitmments!™ i— i— 5— S | 5830.344) 5— L o]

Putriam Diversified income Trust Funds (Cayman) k>
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i L1 i & = E E
it é L g8 asg,{ 8 g
s 3
;5 53 SE EEG gﬁ _'_s_'g (2 g
: § -:s 5% 28 BE g% § ; E Total
[ — §— — - §— 5— 5— 5—
- - - - - - - - 1353509
= = 33,361 = ~ - - - 515,565
- - 1153537 B - - - - 4181342
B.£30 weT2 - = 723,785 56,557 292,786 53,771 3,196,936
- a1 - - - - -~ B 561,175
= 1,203,756 - - - - - - 3523.281
— 2,475,199 - - - - - - 2,176,139
= - - 352000 = - - - | 3000
$6,550 $4,079.828 31,186,598 | $30,352,000 §723,785 | 456,557 5192,186 553,771 | 546,063,797
| |
- 816,558 = = | = - - - | 16,558
- - - - - - - - 1,283,268
- 25,281 7130 - = - - - 184,191
- = 1542269 - - - - - 6,141,638
- - = - = - - - 20,377
- —~ - 25,579 - - - - 2518 |
| nr E59.652 - | - 1985% | I 402,875 0082 IJMEEET
! !
= 288,217 - | - - - - = 500,298
- 1,204,762 - | - - | - - — 3L |
i T~ — =)= i - - 1524283 |
§217,327 £4,719,453 51,540,390 535,570 S108,606 | 5274718 £402,875 570,082 516,948,937
| 5208,637) 5(539,628) | Sl362401) 530326421 S55088 | S(n816 5(110,089) 15310 | 29,118,860 .
| Sirse, 714} SIE9625) | SU9766) | SI06421 | $525009 | S40e) | S009,802) = |
[ 5— $— $— $— 5— - 5— s
${40,023) §= $(232.635) | 5= $- {77,218 $1287) (16,311}
!
5— 5~ 5— | 5= 55211 5= £ 5— 51378723
s 5 5— | 430,359,000 = 5— 5 = | S50 |
H158,714) | Slegaany) 5129766 | = 5= 140,944} 5109,802) §— | spasasny
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“Exchudes premiums, il any. Incleded in Financial assets and,/or Financisl labiities at fair value through profit or lass on the Statements of financial position.

“Included with Financial assets andfor Financial Babilites at fairvalue through profit or loss on the Statements of financial position.
Tadditional collateral may be required from certain brokers based on individual agresments.

*Copvered by master netting agreement [Note 8L

“hrry over-collateralization of tors! finsneisl snd dervative net asselsis nol shown, Collateral may include amounts related 1o unsettled agreements.
Hincludes current day's variation margin only a5 reporied on the Statemnents of financial position, whichis not collateralized.

Putnaem Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 38
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13. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These fingncial statements were approved by the Trustes on August 2, 2018,

14, EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
There were no significant pest-Statements of financial position events throwgh August 2, 2018,

Putriam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 9
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2018
491,561 54,593
2,295 255
489,266 54,338
6,399,010
65,560,718
6.71 745
6.81 756
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2012 12 100,530,408 112
2013 12 94,263,980 105
2014 12 92,450,090 103
2015 12 96,767,628 107
2016 12 65,195,828 72
2017 12 59,950,957 67
2018 29,154,553 32

100 u.s.
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1937
2018 1,750 19.4
10 182
2018

2018

490
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2017

131

23 103

25 193

UFJ
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
62,938,062 6,989,901 68,897,286 7,651,733
12,996,889 1,443,434 725,031 80,522
2,165,899 240,545 2,173,385 241,376
6,316,934 701,559 24,989 2,775
84,417,784 9,375,439 71,820,691 7,976,406
29,674,575 3,295,658 30,652,394 3,404,255
6,968,117 773,879 2,968,931 329,729
5,548,113 616,173 5,556,371 617,091
10 6,913,850 767,852 6,996,335 777,013
12 1,173,639 130,344
39,860,610 4,426,919 42,001,846 4,664,725
88,965,265 9,880,482 89,349,516 9,923,157
(4,547,481) (505,043) (17,528,825) (1,946,751)
57,292,387 6,362,893 (6,569,443) (729,602)
(61,839,868) (6,867,936) (10,959,382) (1,217,149)
353,154 39,221 15,140 1,681
(62,193,022) (6,907,157) (10,974,522) (1,218,830)
11
(657,295) (72,999) (2,675,353) (297,125)
38,549 4,281 (39,985) (4,441)
(618,746) (68,718) (2,715,338) (301,565)
(62,811,768) (6,975,875) (13,689, 860) (1,520,396)
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
12,388,374 1,375,853 12,661,297 1,406,164
26,510,267 2,944,230 45,824,044 5,089,218
16,053,645 1,782,918 17,264,677 1,917,415

8,437,052 937,019 12,226,274 1,357,850
2,207,990 245,219 3,441,914 382,259
11,906 1,322 55,028 6,111
2,071,451 230,055 2,293,007 254,661
1,626,716 180,663 99,283 11,026
69,307,401 7,697,280 93,865,524 10,424,705
987,072 109,624 1,772,685 196,874
3,926,707 436,100 4,518,905 501,870
8,056 895 70,796 7,863
1,054,383 117,100 828,642 92,029
7,382 820

3,380,226 375,408 21,471,286 2,384,601
9,356,444 1,039,127 28,669,696 3,184,056
52,673,476 5,849,916 94,434,746 10,487,923
358,460,035 39,810,571 243,631,126 27,057,673
(340,783,149)  (37,847,377)  (263,089,385)  (29,218,707)

11 (10,399, 405) (1,154,958) (9,780,659) (1,086,240)
59,950,957 6,658,153 65,195,828 7,240,649
69,307,401 7,697,280 93,865,524 10,424,705
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12 31

2016 12 31

12 31

94,434,746 10,487,923 243,631,126 27,057,673 (263,089, 385) (29,218,707)  (9,780,659)  (1,086,240) 65,195,828 7,240,649
156,830 17,418 156,830 17,418
(13,192,370) (1,465,145) (15,500, 742) (1,721,512) (28,693,112)  (3,186,657)
127,864,449 14,200,626 127,864,449 14,200,626
(41,761,270) (4,638,007) (41,761,270)  (4,638,007)
(618,746) (68,718) (618,746) (68,718)
(62,193,022) (6,907,157) (62,193,022)  (6,907,157)
52,673,476 5,849,916 358,460,035 39,810,571 (340,783,149) (37,847,377)  (10,399,405)  (1,154,958) 59,950,957 6,658,153
112,317,340 12,473,964 243,630,472 27,057,600 (252,114,863) (27,999,877)  (7,065,321) (784,675) 96,767,628 10,747,013
654 73 654 73
(17,882,594) (1,986,041) (17,882,594)  (1,986,041)
(2,715,338) (301,565) (2,715,338) (301,565)
(10,974,522) (1,218,830) (10,974,522)  (1,218,830)
94,434,746 10,487,923 243,631,126 27,057,673 (263,089, 385) (29,218,707)  (9,780,659)  (1,086,240) 65,195,828 7,240,649
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(4,900, 635) (544, 265) (17,543,965) (1,948,433)
(57,292,387) (6,362,893) 6,569,443 729,602
55,515,229 6,165,521 (7.892,037) (876,490)
68,493 7,607 61,688 6,851
5,222,457 580,006 5,553,823 616,808
156,830 17,418 654 73
1,694 188
12,208,404 1,355,865 36,414,328 4,044,175
353,154 39,221 15,140 1,681
1,211,032 134,497 678,232 75,324
(1,433,235) (159,175) (2,100,232) (233,252)
1,304,917 144,924 16,412,851 1,822,811
(785,613) (87,250) 635,282 70,554
(866,637) (96,249) (17,047,896) (1,893,339)
(62,740) (6,968) (2,706,089) (300,538)
(18,444,214) (2,048,414) (34,406,563) (3.821,193)
(55,659,217) (6,181,513) 6,168,604 685,085
(63,402, 468) (7,041,478) (9,186,737) (1,020,279)
(2,111,573) (234,511) (11,920,000) (1,323,835)
9,216,946 1,023,634 36,321,421 4,033,857
(1,597,620) (177,432) (7.340) (815)
5,507,753 611,691 24,394,081 2,709,207
(179,756,206)  (19,963,724)  (181,259,030)  (20,130,628)
237,166,273 26,339,686 163,376,436 18,144,587
57,410,067 6,375,962 (17,882,594) (1,986,041)
211,725 211,725 (223,258) (24,795)
(272,923) (30,311) (2,898,508) (321,908)
12,661,297 1,406,164 15,559,805 1,728,072
12,388,374 1,375,853 12,661,297 1,406,164
(1,518,888) (168,688) (512,270) (56,893)
11,030 1,225 4,717 524
51,382 5,706 3,703 411
127,864,449 14,200,626
(28,693,112) (3,186,657)
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02109

2017 12 22 the Tax Reconciliation Act( . .1)
2018
35 21
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
17,536 646,100

602,659 18,485,618

38,775 108,762

658,970 19,240,480

24,537 43,078

8,056 70,796

42,214 489,491

584,163 18,637,115

658,970 19,240,480
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
622,012 244,207
268,858 229,067
97.75 44,925 5,797
o ! 2,382
95.13 96,141 560
0o 2 212,088 6,401
353,154 15,140
! 2016 12
2 2017
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
11,170,838 10,815,197
1,200,000 1,200,000
17,536 646,100
12,388,374 12,661,297
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 1,200,000

14
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two-sided markets
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2009 12
2017
12,078,992
12,057,860
21,132
2017 2016 12 31 68,493
61,688
2017 12 31 9,490,304
(1,053,252) 2016 12 31
12,932,329 (706,055)
2017

12 31 2016 12 31

168/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 3,062,696 2016 2,900,259 2017
5,685,472 2016 5,486,445
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probable threshold

2017 2016 12 31
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modified

separate return method
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/
12 2017
12
2017
2014 2017 12
2016
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15 2014 15
18
2015 2017
2018 15
2016 12
15
2018
2018
2018
8,437,052
15
2017 12 31
3,062,696 3,062,696
2018
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2014

2018

2018

39

16

2016

12

2019

16
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2016
2018
22 2016 12
22
2018
2014 2016 12
2016
2014 2016
12
28
28
2018
23 2017 23
12
2019
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2015 2017 12
2017
2015 2017
11
12 23

2019
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26,074,587,402

178/270

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
15,634,649 36,523,944
10,837,761 9,267,447
26,472,410 45,791,391

37,857 32,653
37,857 32,653
26,510,267 45,824,044
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
8,056 70,796
8,056 70,796
2017 12 31 2016 12 31

26,486,748,497
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2017
2016 12 31
2017 12 31
55,956 55,956
15,018,400 524,943 35,350 15,578,693
“ 37,857 10,837,761 10,875,618
15,056,257 11,418,660 35,350 26,510,267
® 1,200,000 1,200,000
DG 16,053,645 16,053,645
16,256,257 27,472,305 35,350 43,763,912
1,495 1,495
6,561 6,561
8,056 8,056
DG 4,913,779 4,913,779
4,921,835 4,921,835
@
)
A3)

*
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2016 12 31

20,560,208 20,560,208

15,769,122 154,845 39,769 15,963,736

* 32,653 9,267,447 9,300,100

15,801,775 29,982,500 39,769 45,824,044

® 1,200,000 1,200,000

DOG 17,264,677 17,264,677

6,597 6,597

17,001,775 47,253,774 39,769 64,295,318

70,796 70,796

70,796 70,796

IO 6,291,590 6,291,590

6,362,386 6,362,386
@
)
@A)

*
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2017 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
39,769 4,216,507
. (4,176,828)
/ (4,419)
12 31 35,350 39,769
2017 2016 12 31
2017 2016 12 31
2017 12 31
5,621,678 5,621,678
73,244 73,244
622,012 622,012
6,243,690 73,244 6,316,934
2016 12 31
(197,707) (197,707)
(21,511) (21,511)
244,207 244,207
46,500 (21,511) 24,989
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2017 12 31
872,217 872,217 1,888
(1,036,534) (1,036,534)  (8,449)
(164,317) (164,317)  (6,561)

7,945

2016 12 31

710,960 710,960  (22,678)
(1,171,384) (1,171,384) 29,275
(460,424) (460,424) 6,597

29,601

2017 2016 12 31

182/270
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2017 12 31
657,547 203,102 3,363,171 4,223,820
(657,547) (150,088)  (3,316,902)  (4,124,537)

53,014 46,269 99,283

425,404 94,819 1,077,397 1,597,620

(480, 476) (2,720,173)  (3,200,649)

(6,428) (22,020) (40,045) (68,493)

480,476 2,718,479 3,198,955

602,475 297,921 1,720,395 2,620,791

(183,499) (172,108) (638, 468) (994,075)

418,976 125,813 1,081,927 1,626,716
2016 12 31

657,547 195,762 3,363,781 4,246,172

(657,547) (126,257)  (3,279,655)  (4,034,808)

69,505 84,126 153,631

7,340 7,340

(610) (610)

(23,831) (37,857) (61,688)

610 610

657,547 203,102 3,363,171 4,223,820

(657,547) (150,088)  (3,316,902)  (4,124,537)

53,014 46,269 99,283

183/270
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
38,775 108,762
922,130 1,251,586
1,247,085 2,081.566
2,207,990 3,441,914
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
584,163 18,637,115
42,214 489,491
2,753,849 2,344,680
3,380,226 21,471,286
2017 2016 12 31
/
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
11,906 55,028
(1,054,383) (828,642)
(1,042,477) (773,614)
(773,614) 14,790
(1,777,158) (1,322,594)
1,518,888 512,270
(10,593) 21,920
(1,042,477) (773,614)

184/270
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
171,021 710,982
781,139 (135,674)
764,362 1,083,591
136,588
354,929 497,520
2,071,451 2,293,007
(328)
(8,559)
1,505
(7.,382)
2,285,625 2,522,406
(243,422) 181,113
29,248 (417,894)
2,071,451 2,285,625
/
2027
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
1,777,158 1,322,594
1,777,158 1,322,594

185/270
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(6,713,338) (8,535,018)
62,228,567 642,981
55,515,229 (7,892,037)
57,292,387 (6,569,443)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2,232,568 (1,089,491)
2,232,568 (1,089,491)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31

(1,591,619) 35.00 (6,135,089) 35.00

(243,242) 5.35 875,598 -5.00
36,701 -0.81 40,507 -0.23
(3,046,579) 66.99 383,173 -2.19
97,154 -2.14 320,625 -1.83
0.00 (2,390,752) 13.64

62,544,965 -1,375.38 0.00
(123,604) 2.72 (5,299) 0.03
(381,389) 8.39 341,794 -1.95

(57,292,387) -1,259.88 (6,569,443) 37.47

2017 12 31

2007 12 31

2017 12 22 the Tax Reconciliation Act( . .1)
2018
35 21
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35 21
62,544,965
2017 1,375
2018
1986
2017 2016 12 31
52,673,476 94,434,746
2017 2016 12 31
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
/
/ (26,587,038) 228,594,089

/ 79,987,682 (93,818,358)
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(1,255,471) (39,356, 209)
(984,776)
528,303
52,673,476 94,434,746
2017 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
14,079,119 12,268,830
5,683,898,778 5,128,264,857
2017 2016 12 31 2,030,957
3,064,882
2017 2016 12 31 13,936,177 13,717,818
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2017 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
11,147,416 10,407,611
11,147,416 10,407,611
337,480 369,708
337,480 369,708
2017 12 31
28,693,112
127,864,449
401(K)
2017 2016 12
31 329,489 370,750
2017 2016 12 31 2,114,795

1,769,572
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2017 2016 12 31
1,302,628 2,242,026
2017 2016 12 31
730,806 723,332
2017
12 31 4,576,218
3.91
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
390,300 19.66 472,500 20.86
87,500 15.05 87,500 14.86
(82,600) 20.77 (63,700) 19.94
/
11,600 19.04 (106,000) 20.88
(40,600) 19.65
12 31
366,200 18.29 390,300 19.66
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
478,098 334,800
926,771 1,268,374
3,278,643 1,684,800
57,567 55,389
4,741,079 3,343,363
2017 2016 12 31 39,860,610

42,001,846
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
20,015,720 19,937,845
23,172,722 23,320,059

(7,110,176)

(5,103,907)

1,717,458 1,618,673
2,064,886 2,229,176
39,860,610 42,001,846
10
2017 12 31 2016 12 31

1,691,475 1,909,026
1,763,518 1,748,364
1,502,650 1,427,954

698,039 505,521

337,480 369,708

249,153 229,250

268,858 229,067

199,382 210,551

68,493 61,688

37,037 41,948

97,765 263,258

6,913,850 6,996,335
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2017 12 31
(10,140,902) 360,243 (9,780,659)
1,531,414 38,667 1,570,081
(2,188,709) (118)  (2,188,827)
(10,798,197) 398,792 (10,399,405)
2016 12 31
(7.465,549) 400,228  (7,065,321)
(4,137,669) (39,851)  (4,177,520)
1,462,316 (134) 1,462,182
(10,140,902) 360,243 (9,780,659)
1,173,639
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
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2017 12 31

2023
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

11,559,628 1,413,258 1,616,059 1,664,986 1,102,242 941,257 4,821,826

2016 12 31

2022
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

2,371,872 1,843,678 480,130 48,064
2017 2016 12 31
1,510,722 1,550,871
1,763,518 1,748,364
2009 11
2009
600,000 2016
2017 2017
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500,000,000

2017 12 31

13 2017 2016 12 31

2017 2016 12 31
402,000 498,000

10
2017 2016 12 31 1,287,000 1,223,000
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16
2017 12 31 2018 19
2018 18
2018 31
98,732,744
2018
49,326,538
2018 301.7701-3
disregarded entity
2018
2018
30,767,667
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I LSS
REVENUE
Investment advisory fees, net
Performance foes
Contingent deferred sales charges
Met investment income and other income (Mote 3)

Total revenue

EXPEMSES

Compensaion and benefils

Professional and external senices

Dealer commissions

Other operating expenses (Note 10)

Restructunng (Note 12)

Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net (Mote 9)
Total expenses

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense/{benefit) (Mode 8)
NET LOSS BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Antributatle 1o non-controlling interests (Note 2)
NET LOSS
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAX (Note 11):
Items that may be redassifled subsequently to profit or loss
Unreahized foreign exchange loss on translation of foreign operations, net
Unrealized gain'{loss) on available-for-sale investments, net
Ttems thal will nol be reclassified (o profit or loss

Oiher comprehensive loss Tor the year, nel of income tax

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years ended December 31,

2017 20046
862,938,062 $68,897,286
12,996,850 725,031
2,165,899 2,173,385
6,316,934 24,980
84,417,784 71,820,691
29,674,575 30,652,394
6.968,117 2968931
5,548,113 5,556,371
6,913,850 6996335
. 1173639
39,860,610 42001 846
88,965,265 89349516
{4,847,481) (17,528 825)
57,293 387 (6.569.44%)
{61.839,868) (10,959 382}
353,154 15,140

(§62.193.022) (310,974,522}

($657,295) (52,675,353)
38,549 (39.985)

(615, 746) (2,715,338}
(562811, 768) {513,639 860)

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these consolidated fnancial Aatements,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LIC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
in LSS 2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 2) 512,388,374 $12,661,297
Investments {MNote 3) 26,510,267 45,824,044
Accrued ivestment advisory fees receivable 16,053,645 17,264,677
Prepaid dealer commissions, net 8437052 12,226,274
Other assets (MNote &) 2,207 990 3,441,914
Cuirent tax assel (Note 8) 11,506 55,028
Dreferred tax asset (MNote 8) 2,071,451 2,293 007
Capital assets, net (MNote 5) 1,626,716 00,283
TOTAL ASSETS 560,307,401 593,865,524
LIABILITIES AND MENMBER'S EQUITY
Liabilities
Agcrued compensation and employee benefits S087,072 §1,772,685
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses 3,926,707 4,518,905
Investments sold short (Mote 2) 8,056 T0,796
Current tax liability (MNote 8) 1,054,353 228642
Dreferred tax liability {MNote 8) - 7382
Other liabilities {Mote T) 3,380,226 21,471,286
Total liabilities £0.356_.414 528,660,606
Member's equity
Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net (Mote 9 852,673,476 £94,434,746
Contributed surplus 358,460,035 243,631,126
Accumulated defict (340,783_149) (263,089_385)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Mote 11) (10,399 405) (9,780,659
Total member's equity 59,950,957 65,195,828
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY 860,307,401 £93.865,524

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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ks ol A
Years ended December 31,

In LSS 7 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
L.oss before income taxes and non-controlling interests (54,900,635) (517,543 965)
Income tax (expense)benefit (57.292,387) 6,569,443
Addjustments;

Drefermed income tanes 55,515,229 (7,892,037

Depreciation and amortization of capital assets 68,493 61,688

Prepaid dealer commission amortization 5222 457 5,553,823

Adjustment to deferred tax assets to Equity Incentive Flan fair value 156,830 G54

Retirement of property and equipment 1.694 -

Changes in FVTPL secunfies 12,208,404 36,414,328

MNon-controlling interests in consolidated eamings 353,154 15,140
(Increase ) decrease in operating assets:

Accrued mvestment advisory fees receivable 1,211,032 678,232

Prepaid dealer commissions (1,433235) (2,100, 232)

Other assels 1,304,917 16,412,851
Increase’ decrease) in operating liabilities:

Acerued compensation and employvee benefits (TB5.613) 635,282

Accounts payvable and acorued expenses (B66,637) (17,047, 8595)

Imvestments sold short (62,7400 {2,706,080)

Other liabilities (18,444.214) (34,406_563)
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities (55,659.217T) 6,168,604
Met cash used in operating activities (63,402, 468) (9, 186,737)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments (2,011,373) (10,920,000
Proceeds on sales of investments 9216946 36,321,421
Additions to capital assets (1,597 620) {7,340)
Met cash provided by investing activities 5507753 24,364,081
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates {Note 9) (179,756, 206) (181,259,030)
Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates (Mote 9 237,166,273 163,376,436
Met cash provided by/(used i) financing activities 57,410,067 (17,582.504)
Effiect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 211,725 (223 258)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (272,923) (2,898, S08)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,661,297 15,559,805
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 512,388,374 512,661,297
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Foreign income tax paid (MNote 8) (£1,518,8588) (£512,270)

Interest received $11,030 £4.717

Dividend income received £51,382 £3,703
Supplemental Non-Cash Flow Information from Financing Activities:

Contmbution-in-kind recerved from Parent (Mote 9 £127,864,449 5

Dividend-in-kind paid to Parent (Note 9) ($28,603,112) 5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these conzolidated financial statements.
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In (/5%

1. Corporate Information

The Putnam Advizory Company, LLC (the “Company™) is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam
Investments, LLC {the “Parent™ or “Putnam™), which is a majority indirectly-owned subsidiary of Great-West
Lifeco Ine, (“Lifeco™). The Company’s ullimate parent company s Power Corporation of Canada, The Company
is incorporated in the State of Delaware in the United States of America. The registered office and principal place
of business is located at One Post Office Square, Boston, Massachusetts, 02109, United States of Amernica, The
LS. dollar (5) is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to institutional clients, In connection
with providing these services, the Company receives an investment advisory fee, which is based upon the clients”
negotiated fee rate and the average assets under management. Company revenue is largely dependent on the total
value and composition of assets under management (“AUNM™), which include domestic and international equity
and debt portfolios; accordingly, fuctuations in financial markets and in the composition of assets under
management alTeel revenues and resulls of operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Notes 2, 8, and 9.
The accompanyving consolidated financial stalements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by
the Company and may not be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations that would have
existed if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

On December 22, 2007, H.R. 1, the Tax Reconciliation Act, was substantively enacted. The legislation, which was
generally effective for tax vears beginning on January 1, 2018, results in significant U5, tax reform and revises the
Internal Revenue Code by, among other things, lowering the corporate federal income tax rate from 35% to 21%
and moedifying how the ULS. taxes multinational entities (Note 8).

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Finaneial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). as issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard (“TASBE™).
The policies set out below were consistently applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise noted. The
Company will adopt, or has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of new or amended
aceounting standards that are relevant to the business as deseribed in Changes in Accounting Policies and Future
Accounting Policies within this Note.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
significant judgments involving estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Liabilities
and disclosure of assels and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Although some uncertainty is inherent in these judgments and estimates, management
belicves that the amounts recorded are reasonable. Key sources of cstimation uncertainty and arcas where
significant judgments have been made are listed below and discussed throughout the notes to the consolidated
financial statements including:
+ In the determination of the fair value of financial instruments, the Company's management exercises
Judgment in the determination of fair value inputs, particularly those items categorized within level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy (Note 3).
*  The Company operates within various tax jurisdictions where management judgments and estimates are
required when interpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations and legislation in the determination of the
Company’s tax provisions and the carrying amounts of its tax assets and Labilities { Note 8).

7
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In (/5%

*  Legal and other provisions are recognized resulting from past events which, in the judgment of
management, has resulted in a probable outflow of economic resources which would be passed to a third-
party to scttle the obligation. Management uses judgment to evaluate the possible outcomes and risks in
determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet date (Note 13).

+  Management consolidates all entities and investment vehicles which it determines that the Company
controls. Control is evaluated on the ability of the Company to direct the relevant activities of the
subsidiary or entity to derive variable retums and management uses judgment in determining whether
control exists. Judgment is exercised in the evaluation of the variable retums and in determining the extent
to which the Company has the ability to exercise ils power to generate variable returns (Note 2),

+  The Company uses estimates to determine its prepaid dealer commission assel.

*  The Company uscs estimales to determine certain components of share-based amortization expense
including the share price and forfeiture estimates (MNote 9),

The significant accounting policies are as follows:

FPrinciples of Consolidation

The consolidated financial stalements include the accounts of the Company and its consolidated subsidiary
companies, the most significant of which are Putnam Investments Limited, Pulnam Investments (Ireland) Limited,
Pulnam Investments Australia Pty Limited. Pulnam Investments Capnada ULC, and Pulnam  Intemational
Distributors, Lid. The retml funds (the “Funds™). mstitutional portfolios, and other mvestment products,
{collectively, the “Company Funds™). that the Company controls are also mcluded in consolidation beginning on
the date on which the Company obtained control. Accounting policies of consolidated subsidiaries and Company
Funds are conformed to the Company’s accounting policies upon consolidation.

The Company provides for non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiaries for which the Company’s
ownership is less than one hundred percent. Third party interests in the consolidated Company Funds are recorded
as liabilities in the Consalidated Balance Sheets, as outlined in Note 7, Other Lighilities. MNet income belonging 1o
third party interest holders in the Company Funds is recorded in Afiributable to non-contrelling interests in the
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

All intercompany accounts and transactions between consolidated subsidiaries are eliminated in consolidation.
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In LSS

Fund Consolidation

The following table summarizes the effect of entries by financial statement line item to consolidate the Company
Funds in which the Company has control:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 817,534 S646,100
Investments 602,659 18,485,618
(ther assets 875 108,762
Total increase in assets S658,970 519240480
Liahilities
Ageounts pavable and scerued expenses §24,537 $43,078
[nvestments sold shont 8,056 70,79
Securities purchased (Other liabilities) 42,214 489,491
Third party mierests (Other liabilities) 384,163 18,637,115
Total increase in liabilities S658,970 $19.240,480
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Revenue
Net investment meome and other income $622,012 §244,207
Expenses
Cither operating expenses £208 858 §220.067
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests
Emerging Markets Fund - 97.75% ownership 544,925 83,797
Asia Pacific Fund - 0% ownership’ - 2,382
Global Core Equity Fund - 95.13% ownership 96,141 Sl
Short Duration Income Fund - (% ownership® 212,088 6,401
Attributable to nnn-cnntrnl]]ng interests 535314 15,140

“Interest in this find was sold in December 2016.
“Interest in this fund was scld in September 2017,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In (/5%

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cagh and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, and time deposits with original
maturities of three months or less, which are readily convertible into cash. Cash and cash equivalents also include
the cash held by the Company Funds, The carrving value of cash and cash equivalents approximates its fair value,

The components of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2016
Cash m bank & demand deposits 11,170,838 S10,815,197
Time deposits 1, 2000, (0 1, 2000 (b
Cash of the Company Funds 17,536 646,100
Total cash and cash equivalents S12 388,374 812,661,297

At both December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, 51,200,000 of the cash and cash equivalents balance was held
to comply with regulatory capital requirements of the Company’s foreign subsidiary domiciled in Dublin. Further
capital requirements of the Company requiring regulatory member’s cquity balances are owtlined in Note 14,

Investments

Investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™). available-for-sale (“AFS™) held-to-
maturity, or equity method based on management’s intention or characteristics of the investment, For consolidated
Company Funds, the Company classifies all investments as FVTPL. For non-consolidated funds, the Company
may elect to classify the investment as FVTPL, AFS, or equity method. depending on the strategic nature of the
investment. The Company currently has not classified any investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as
held-to-maturity or equity method.

Consolidated Company Fund investments are classified as FVTPL. The classification of investments depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. FVTPL
investments held by the consolidated Company Funds have readily determinable fair values and are carried at fair
value in Investments in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. FVTPL investments are generally valued at the last sale
or elesing price on the day of valuation or, if no sales took place on such date. at the mean between the closing bid
and ask prices on the exchange where such securitics are principally traded, or the latest available bid and ask
prices for unlisted secunties or where current prices are not available, Changes in fair value are reported in Net
mvestment income and other income in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss. The net
gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest carned on the financial asset,

Certain unconsolidated investments are also classified as FVTPL in Investments in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and are carried at fair value based on the last reported net asset value, with changes in fair value reported in
Met invesiment income and other income in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

AFS

The Company classifies centain unconsolidated investments, which include the Funds that are not held for trading,
as AFS. The investments that are listed on an active exchange are reported at fair value on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets based on the last reported net assel value and converted to the functional currency., if applicable.
Unrealized gains and losses. net of deferred income taxes, for these investments are reported a8 a component of
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (“ADCL”). Realized gains and losses on investments sold are determined
using the specific identification method and are included in Net investment income and other income in the
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

10
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In (/5%

Fair Value Measurement

The Company’s financial assets and labilities recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the
following fair value hierarchy:

Finaneial assets and habilities categorized as Level 1 utilize observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical asscts or liabilitics that the Company has the ability to access. This category includes actively
exchange-traded equity secunities and publicly-traded mutual funds with quaoted market prices.

Finaneial assets and liabilitics categonized as Level 2 utilize observable inputs other than Level 1 unadjusted
quoted market prices.  The fair values for some Level 2 securitics were obtained from pricing services. The
pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark vields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes,
issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and reference data, Level 2 securities could
melude those priced using a matrix which are based on credit quality and average hife, government and agency
securities, restricted stock, some private equities. hedge funds, most investment-grade and high-yield corporate
bonds, certain asset=backed securities, and foreign exchange forward currency contracts.

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 3 utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or Lability.
The prices of the majority of Level 3 securitics were obtained from single broker quotes and internal pricing
moedels. The Company’s financial assets utilizing Level 3 inputs include equity and debt securities.

In certain cases, the mputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In
such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has
been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety
requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or hability.

Investment Im pairment

Financial assets not at FVTPL are reviewed at least quarterly, or when an impairment indicator exists, on an
individual asset basis to determine impairment status, The Company considers various factors in the impairment
evaluation process, mcluding, but not limited to, the financial condition of the issuer, specific adverse conditions
affecting an industry or region, decling in fair value not related to interest rates, bankrupicy or defaults and
delinguency in payments of interest or principal.

Diebt instruments are deemed to be impaired when there is no longer reasonable assurance of timely collection of
the full amount of the principal and interest due. Equity investments are deemed to be impaired when the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, including information about significant changes with adverse
effects that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal enviromment in which the issuer
operates that may indicate that the carrying amount will not be recovered, and a significant or prolonged decling in
fair value of an equity instrument below its cost. The fair value of an investment is not a definitive indicator of
impairment, as it may be significantly influenced by other factors incleding the remaining term to maturity and
liquidity of the asset. However, market price must be taken into consideration when evaluating impairment. For
impaired available-for-sale investments, the accumulated loss recorded in AOCL 15 reclassified to Net investment
imcome and other income on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, Gains and losses on
FVTPL investments are already recorded in income. Impairments on available-for-sale assets are reversed if there
is objective evidence that a permanent recovery has occurred.

In December 2000, management of the Parent fully impaired s investment in a collateralized debt obligation
11
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(“CDOM, for which the Company was the asset manager, based wpon declining market conditions. Under the
terms of its offering memorandum, the CDO was required to hold an annual auction of its portfolio to provide
liquidity, beginning in 2017, A successful bid from this auction resulted in proceeds to the Company in the amount
of $12.078,992, The Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss line item components affected are
as follows: 812,057,860 of Performance fees, representing accumulated previously camed fees and 521,132 of
Investment advisory fees. net.

Capital assets, net

Capital assets, net are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation computed on a straight-ling basis
over their estimated wseful lives, which vary from three to seven years. Capital assets are evaluated for impairment
on a quarterly basis. Assets no longer used, and the associated accumulated depreciation, are removed from the
Consolidated Balance Sheets with a charge recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss for the net carrving value of the assets. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease.
Depreciation of capital assets for the yvears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, included in Other operaling
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, is 568,493 and 561,688, respectively.

Prepaid Dealer Commissions, net

Ineluded in prepaid dealer commissions, net are sales commissions paid by the Company to brokers in connection
with the sale of back-end load share classes of certain funds, These commissions are capitalized and subsequently
amortized over the period in which the fund’s sharcholder is subject to a contingent deferred sales charge
(“CDSCY), generally one to five years.

Prepaid dealer commission, net consists of asset and accumulated depreciation amounts as of December 31, 2017
of 89,490,304 and (81,053,252), respectively, as of December 31, 2016, these amounts were $12,932,329 and
(ST06,055), respectively.

The Company assesses the recoverability of the prepaid dealer commission’s asset each quarter by comparing
expected discounted future cash flows from the higher distribution fees to be collected from the back-end load
share ¢lasses of the Funds, with the recorded prepaid dealer commission asset. If the comparison indicates that the
discounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the recorded carrying value, the asset is adjusted to fair value.
Mo such impairments were required in the vears ended December 31, 2017 or December 31, 2016.

Investments Sold Short

Company Funds may sell securities that are not owned in anticipation of a decling in the fair value of these
securilies, creating an obligation to purchase the securities at a future date in order to cover the short positions of
the Company Funds, The Company records these obligations as Investments sold short, in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, with changes in fair value recorded to Mel investment income and other income in the
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Other Financial Instruments

The carrying value of Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, Accrued compensation and employee benefits
and Accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates their fair values. They are classified as loans and
receivables. and initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method, unless short-term, where interest would be insignificant.

Offsetting and Presentation of Intercom pany Receivables and Payables

Intercompany receivables and payables are offset and the net amount is presented in the Consolidated Balance
12
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Sheets. This occurs when the Company and its Parent and affiliates owe cach other a determinable amount, the
Company has the right to set off the amount owed with the amount owed by affiliates, and the Company intends to
set off the amount owed and the right is enforceable by a Putnam Group Master Netting Agreement. It is the
Company’s policy to include Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates, net as a component of Member’s equity on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets, since periodic settlement usually occurs in the form of a non-cash accounting
transaction.

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory fees. net are based on contractual agreements and a percentage of average or period-end assets
under management net of distribution fees (2017: 83.062,696: 2016: 52,9M.259) and expense limits (2017:
85,685,472 2016: 55.486.445). Investment advisory fees are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Loss
and Comprehensive Loss as camed on a daily, monthly or quarterly basis, and are paid monthly or quarterly.

Performance fees are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss when
performance obligations or thresholds have been satisfied and management is assured of their realization,

Contingent deferred sales charges are camed on back-end load share classes of certain funds wpon ecarly
shareholder redemption. These sales charges are recorded as income on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss at the time of shareholder redemption.

Net investment income and other income includes unrealized and realized gains and losses on the Company s
investments as well as interest income and dividend income. This income is recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as eamed.

Dealer Commissions

Commissions paid to the registered representatives of the Company and amortization of prepaid dealer
commissions that are capitalized for the back-end load share classes are presented as Dealer commissions in the
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Share-Based Payments

Share-based payment awards for restricted Class B shares and options on Class B shares granted to employees
under the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP™) {(Note 9), are accounted for as cquity-settled
awards. Under this method. compensation cost recognized includes compensation cost for all share-based
pavment arrangements granted based on the grant-date fair value, which is determined using both the market and
income valuation approach as outlined in the EIP. The Company uses the graded vesting method to amortize the
awards. The effect of forfeitures on restricted shares is estimated when recognizing compensation cost.  Share-
based compensation is recorded as a component of Compensation and benefits on the Consolidated Statements of
Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Deferred taxes on the amortization of share-based payments are based on the estimated tax deduction at the end of
the reporting penod and are re-measured cach reporting period to reflect the change in the current share price.

When the future tax deduction is expected to exceed the grant date compensation expense recognized. the excess
tax benefit is recognized as Contributed surplus. A tax deduction shortfall is recognized as additional tax expense.

13
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Income Taxes

The tax expense for the vear represents the sum of current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized as an
expense or benefit in profit or loss exeept to the extent that it relates to items that are recognized outside profit or
loss (whether in other comprehensive loss or direetly in equity), in which case the 1ax 15 also recognized outside of
profit or loss,

Under the IFRS liability method, a provision for tax uncertaintics which meet the probable threshold for
recognilion 15 measured based on the probability weighted average approach., There were no uncertain lax
positions recorded by the Company in either vear presented,

The Company’s non-LU.5. subsidiaries are subject to local tax in the various jurisdictions in which they are located.
The related current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and the related cash tax payments are made by each individual non-
1.5, subsidiary or branch.

The Company is included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent. In accordance with the cash
management corporate accounting policy between the Parent and the Company, the Company shall pay to. or
receive from, the Parent an amount equal to the total provision or benefit for income taxes that the Company
discloses on ils financial statements. A settlement is made via an intercompany transaction with the Parent. The
income tax balances reflected within the intercompany accounts are periodically settled at the separate company
rate via a contribution from or a distribution to the Parent.

Current Income Tax

Current income tax is based on taxable income for the year. Current tax liabilitics {assets) for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, Current tax assets and current tax
liabilitics are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset the recognized amounts and the entity inlends
gither to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the lability simultancously. U5, current taxes are
settled through the intercompany account, while the remaining non<U. 5. taxes are paid by the Company.

The Company participates in a written agreement with Lifeco and other ULS, afliliates of Lifeco ("Tax Sharing
Agreement”), with which it files consolidated federal and certain combined state income tax returns, The Company
accounts for federal and state income taxes on the modified separate return method in its separate company
financial statements. Under this method. current and deferred tax expense or benefit is determined on a separate
retumn basis but consideration is given to taxable income or losses from other members of the affiliated group in
evaluating the realizability of its deferred tax assets. The method of settling income tax payables and receivables
among the U5, consolidated group is subject to the Tax Sharing Agreement, whereby settlement is made on a
separate return basis (i.e. the amount that would be due to or from the jurisdiction had an actual separate company
return been filed) except for the current wtilization of any net operating losses and other tax attributes by members
ol the affiliated group which can lead fo receiving a pavment when none would be receved from the jurisdiction
had a real separate company return been required.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is the tax expected to be pavable or recoverable on differences ansing between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in
the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences whereas deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable

14
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profits will be available to utilize the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the vear when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assels against current tax habilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the
same taxable authority and the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis. Deferred taxes related to ULS. taxes are reported through the intercompany
aceount,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilized, The unrecognized deferred tax asset is reassessed al each balance sheet date and recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered,

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company”s consolidated financial statements are prepared in United States dollars, which is the functional and
presentation cwrreney of the Company, For those consolidated subsidianes with different functional currencies,
exchange rate differences arising from the translation of their monetary assets and liabilitics in the forcign
operation are recorded to unrealized foreign exchange pains (losses) on translation of foreign operations in ADCL,

For the purpose of presenting these consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into United States dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates and
all foreign denominated income and expense items are translated at a monthly average of daily rates. Unrealized
foreign currency translation gains and losses on the Company’s net investment in its foreign operations are
presented separately as a component of ADCL. Unrealized gains (losses) will be recognized in net investment
mcome on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss when there has been a disposal of the
investment in the foreign operations,

Foreign currency translation gains and losses on foreign curency transactions are included in Other operating
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Member’s Equity

Confributed surplus represents capital contributions made to the Company from the Parent. Accumulated deficit
represents the accumulated losses of the Company., AOCL represents the total of the unrealized foreign exchange
gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations, and the unrealized and realized gains (losses) on available-for-
sale investments, On the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, this activity is classified by
nature and grouped between items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and those that will not be
reclassified. Accounts pavable to Parent and Affiliates, net represents transactions between the Company,
ncluding its consolidated subsidiary companies, and other subsidiaries of the Parent,

Leases

Leases that do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases, where the Company is the lessee, are charged to net camings over the
period of use (Mot 13),

15
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of new or revised accounting

standards, as follows:

Amendment/New Standard

Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies

IAS 12 - Income Taxes

Effective January 1. 2017, the Company adopted the guidance in the
amendments to International Accounting Standard (“TAS™) 12
Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses, which adds clarity to the accounting for deferred tax assets
related to unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair
value.

The adoption of this standard had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company,

IAS 7- Statement of Cash Flows

Effective Januwary 1. 2017, the Company adopted the guidance in the
amendments to IAS 7. Statement of Cash Flows, The objective of
these amendments is for entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activitics, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes.

The adoption of this standard had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

Annual Improvements 2014
2016 Cyele

Effective January 1. 2017, the Company adopted the guidance in the
narrow scope amendments o IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities.

The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the consolidated
finaneial statements of the Company.,

18

212/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in LS8
Future Accounting Policies

The Company may be impacted in the future by the IFES set out in the following table:

Amendment/New Standard Summary of Future Changes
IFRS 15 - Revenue from In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Contracts with Customers Custormers which replaces 1AS 18, Revennwe Recognition. The

standard provides a single revenue recognition standard to align the
financial reporting of revenue from contracts with customers and
related costs. The Company will recognize revenue when it transfers
goods or services to a customer in the amount of consideration the
Company expects to receive from the customer. Fevenue arising
from financial instruments is out of scope of the new standard.

In September 2015, the IASB issued an amendment to IFES 15
providing a deferral of one year of the effective date of the standard.
from January 1, 2017 to January 1, 2018,

On April 12, 2016, the TASE issued another amendment o [FRS 15
clarifying certain requirements and provided additional transitional
reliel for companies that are implementing the new standard,  The
amendments, however, did not change the underlying pranciples of the
standard but clanfy how those principles should be applicd. This
amendment has the same effective date as the deferral to the standard,
Tanuary 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

The Company adopted the standard on January 1, 2018,

The Company has concluded that the adoption of this standard will
have a material impact on the recognition of prepaid dealer
commission expenses. As of January 1, 2018, the remaining balance
of Prepaid dealer commission, net of S8,437,052 on the Consolidated
Balance Shects was written off direetly to Accumulated deficit. The
Company will ne longer defer and amortize these costs, but expense
them as incurred,

Additionally, while there will not be a material change in the timing
of revenue recognition. the presentation of certain revenues and
expenses in the consolidated financial statements will change
between being reported on a net to a gross basis. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in the standard, the change in revenue
recognition will be applied on a modified retrospective basis, which
is anticipated to result in an estimated increase to the December 31,
2017 comparative figures on the Consolidated Statements of Loss
and Comprehensive Loss as follows: 83,062,696 Investment advisory
fees, net and 83,062,696 Dealer commissions, which will be outlined
in the future 2018 footnote disclosures. See revenue recognition
section of Footnote 2.
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Amendment/New Standard Summary of Future Changes

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments In July 2014, the TASB ssued IFRS 9. Financial Instruments o
replace  [AS 39, Fimancial Instrumenis:  Recognition  and
Measurement. The standard provides changes to financial instruments
aceounting for the following:

¢ classilication and measurement of financial instruments,
including introducing a classification of fair value through
other comprehensive income or loss (FVOCI) for certain
financial assets;

o impairment based on an expected loss imparment method;
and

*  hedge accounting that meorporates the nsk management
practices of an entity.

The Company adopted the standard on its effective date of January 1,
2018,

Upon transition, all fair value gains/losses from AFS securities that
were previously accumulated and reported in other comprehensive
income, will be recognized in accumulated deficit as of January 1,
2018, pursuant 1o the provisions of section 7 of IFRS 9, and all
financial instruments will be classified as FVTPL.

The Company has concluded that there will not be a material impact
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, including the accompanying
footnotes. or the measurement or impairment of its financial
instruments under the new standard.

IFRS 16 - Leages In January 2016, the TASB issued IFRS 16 Leases, which introduces
new guidance for wentifying leases as well as a new right-of-use
aceounting model for lessess, replacing the operating and finance
lease accounting maodels that currently exist. The new accounting
mide]l will generally require all lessees to recognize lease assets and
liabilitics on the balance sheet, initially measured at the present value
of wnavoidable lease payments for all leases with a maximum
possible term of more than 12 months,

In contrast to the significant changes for lessees, the new standard
will retain many key aspects of the current lessor accounting model.

The standard is effective January 1, 2019, The Company is evaluating
the impact this standard will have on its consolidated financial
statements.
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Amendment/New Standard

Summary of Future Changes

IFRS 2 — Share-based Pavment

In June 2016, the TASE issued amendments to [FRS 2, Share-based
FPayment, 1o clarify how to account for certain types of share-based
payment transactions. More specifically, the amendments provide
requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-based
payments, for share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligation, as well as, a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The amendments were effective January 1, 2018, Adoption of these
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements,

[FRIC 22 - Foreign
Curreney Transactions and
Addvance Consideration

In December 2016, the [ASE issued Intemnational Financial Reporting
Interpretations  Committee  (“TFRIC™)  Interpretation 22, Forelgn
Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration, that provides
requirements about which exchange rate to use in reporting forcign
currency transactions when payment is made or received in advance.

The interpretation was effective January 1, 2018, Adoption of this
interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements
2014 - 2016 Cyele

In December 2016, the TASE wssued Anmual Improverents 2004 —
201 & Cvele as part of its ongoing process to efficiently deal with non-
urgent narrow scope amendments to IFES. Three amendments were
included in this issue relating to IFRS 12, Dusclosure of Tnferests in
Other Entities, IFRS 1, Firsi-time adoption of International Reporting
Standards and TAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,

The amendments to [FRS 1 and [AS 28 were effective January 1,
2018, Adoption of these amendments will not have a significant
impact on the Company™s consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23

Income Tax Treatments

Uneertainty Ower

In June 2017, the IASE issued IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty
aver fncome Fax Treatments which clarifies application of the
recognition and measurement requirements in TAS 12 fncome Taves
when there is uncertainly over income lax reatmenis,

The interpretation is effective January 1, 2019 The Company is
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this mterpretation, on ils
consolidated financial statements,
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Amendment/New Standard Summary of Future Changes
Annual Improvements 2015 - 2017 | In December 2017, the IASE issued Annual Improvements 2015 -
Cyele 2017 Cyele as part of its ongoing process to efficiently deal with non-

urgent narrow scope amendments to IFRS. Four amendments were
ncluded in this issue relating to IFRS 3, Busimess Combinations,
IFRS 11, Joimd Arrangements, TAS 12, fncome Taves and TAS 23,
Borrawing Costs.

The amendments are effective Janvary 1, 2019, The Company is
evaluating the impact of the adoption of these amendments, on its
consolidated financial statements.

3. Investimentis

{a) The carrving value of investments, which approximates fair value, is as follows:

December 31, Dlecember 31,

2017 2016
FVTPL
Imvestments of consolidated Company Funds 515,634,649 £36,523.944
Seed investments in unconsolidated Company Funds 10.837.761 9.267.447
Total FVTPL investments 526,472,410 545,791,391
AES
Sead investments in unconsolidated Company Funds 537.857 832653
Total AFS investments 537,857 532,653
Total investments 526,510,267 545,524,044
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Investments sold short
Investments sold short held by consolidated Company Funds SR.050 270,796
Total investmenis sold short SH.050 5T0,796

The Company recognizes investments purchased. and derccognizes investments sold. on the trade date.

The Company, as agent, is the sponsor for a number of structured entitics and portfolio manager for separate
accounts that are not consolidated by the Company, These structured entities include retail funds and other
investment portfolios. The nature and purpose of these entities is to provide investors with a variety of investment
opportunities through managed investment strategies. As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, total
AUM relating to the institutional portfolios and other investment products of the Company was 526, 486,748,497
and $26,074,587.402, respectively,

The Company receives management fees and other service and distribution fees related to the services it provides
1o the Company Funds, which are disclosed on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, The
Company alse makes direct investments in these entities from time 1o time, the amount of which is disclosed as
seed investments in unconsolidated Company Funds in the table above. Fees eamed and the fair value of seed
mvestments in unconsolidated Company Funds are considered variable interests due to the impact that changes in
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the value of AUM can have on them. The decision to not consolidate these sponsored structured entitics was made
after considering the level of the Company’s variable interests in the entities related to fees received. and direet
interests held, in the entities.

The following table presents information about all of the Company’s financial assets and liabilitics measured at

fair value on both a recurring and non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and indicates the fair
value hicrarchy of the valuation technigues utilized by the Company to determing such fair value:

December 31, 2017

Assets measured af fadr valie Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tental
Consalidated funds:

Debt securities 8- 835,956 5 855,956

Equity securities 15,018,406 524943 35,350 15,578,693
Unconsolidated Funds 37.857 10,837,761 : 10,875,618
Tatal investments 515,056,257 511,418,660 535,350 526,510,267
Cash equivalents 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Other financial instruments ™' ® - 16,053 643 . 16,053,643
Tutal financial assets 516,256,257 527,472,308 535,350 543,763,912
Liahilities measured af fiir value
Consolidated funds:

Investments sold short 5 51,405 5 £1.495

Foreign exchange currency contracts - 6,561 - 6,561
Total investments sold short 5- 8056 - S8,056
Other financial instruments " @ - 4913779 - 4,913,779
Total financial liabilities 5 54921835 5 54,921,835

" Other financial instruments include Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, Acerued compensation and
employee benelits, and Accounts pavable and acerued expenses.

* Other financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method. The amortized cost of other financal instruments approximates their fair value,
"3'ﬂlec:rn‘ing value of cash equivalents approximates far value due to the short maturities of these instruments.
“'Unconsalidated funds include investments in seed portfilios where the Company does not have control.
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December 31, 2016

Assets measwred al foir value Laevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Consohdated funds:

Debt securitics - §20,560,208 i- 320,560,208

Equity securities 15,769,122 154,845 39,769 15,963,736
Unconsolidated Funds *" 32,653 0,267,447 . 9,300,100
Total investments S15,801,775 529,982,500 £39,769 S45.824.044
Cash equivalents 1,200,000 - . 1,200,000
Other financial instruments ™ - 17,264,677 . 17,264,677
Foreign exchange currency contracts - 6,597 . 6,597
Total financial assets S17.001,775 47,153,774 39,769 S64.295.318
Liabilities measured at fair value
Consalidated funds:

Investments sold short S 870,796 S S0, 7%
Total investments sold short 5 570,796 5 ST0,7%
Other financial instruments ' - 6,291,590 . 6,291,590
Tatal financial liabilities 5 56,362 386 5 56,362,386

" her financial instruments include Accrued investrment advi sory fees receivable, Accrued compensation and

emplovee benefits, and Accounts pavable and sccrued expenses
" Other financial instruments are initially recorded at fair valee and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method. The amortized cost of other financial instruments approximates their fair value,
“The carrying value of cash equivalents approsimates fair value due to the short maturities of these instruments.
*'Uneonsolidated funds includs investments in seed portfolios where the Company does not have contral,

The following table presents additional information about investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and for which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Level 3
Investments

December 31, 2017

Level 3
Investments
December 31, 2016

Balance, January 1, 30 a0 54,216,597
Purchases - -
Sales* - (4,176,828)
Total gains(losses) included in net loss (4,419 -
Balance, December 31, 533,350 538,769

*Sales represent the value at the beginning of the period of the Level 3 secumities sold.

All gains and losses recorded during the vear for assets held at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are reported in Net
investment income and other income in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.
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The Company does not believe that changing one or more of the inputs to reasonable alternate assumptions for
Level 3 fair value measurements would change their fair values significantly.

During the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers made between Level 1 and Level 2
categories.

() Met imvestment income and other income for the years presented is comprised of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Investment

Portfolios Cther Total
}~_I|:l .unn.'ﬂl'm:d and realized gains (designated $5.621.678 5 $5.621.678
FVTPL)
Dividend income and other income - 73244 73,244
Met mvesiment income n the Company Funds 22012 - 622012
Net imvestment income and other income 56,243,690 573,244 56,316,934

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

[nvestment

Portlolios Other Tatal
;flf:,"flm'md and realized losses (designated —— ¢97 707) - $197,707)
Dividend income and other income/{losses) - (21,511 (21,511
Met investment meome in the Company Funds 244,207 - 244,207
Net investment income and other income 546,500 (511,511) 514,989

4. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company Funds invest in forward currency contracts, which are not designated as hedges, The fair value of
the forward contracts 15 included in Investments or Investments sold short on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
Forward contracts are valued by interpolating a value using the spot forward point, which is based on spot rate and
currency interest rate differentials. Unrealized and realized gains and losses are recorded in Net investment income
and other income on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
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The following provides the notional amount, term to maturity and estimated fair value of the consolidated

Company Funds” derivative instruments by category:

December 31, 2017
Notional Amounl
Total
Cher1-5
1 year or less “ Chver 5 years Total estimated fair
yeurs
value
[erivatives nof designated as accounting hmdﬁ«\!::1
Foreign currency exchange contracts - Long 8872017 - 8- b neied ) £1, 588
Foreign currency exchange contracts - Shon (1,036,534) - < (1,036,534) (8449
Total (S164.317) 5 & (S16431T) {56,561)
* The: madmum exposamre 1o credit risk under these contradtsis 57,945 rdated 1o gross spproasion
December 31, 2006
Notional Amount
Total
-5
1 vear or less O 1 Over 5 years Tatal estineited fair
years
value
Derivatives not designated as accounting hedges
Foreign curreney exchange contracts - Long 570,960 3 5 5710960 (512.67T8)
Foreign currency exclange contracts - Short (1,171,384) - (1,171,384} 29,275
Total (5460,424) 5 5 (5460,424) 56,597

* The madmmm sxposure To credif isk mder these contracts is 529 601 rdated o gross apprecation.

The netional amounts at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are representative of the activity during the vear.
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5 Capital Assets, net

The carrving value of capital assets, and the changes in the carrving value of capital assets, is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Furnifure and EDF Leasehold
lixtures Equipment Improvements Toial

Carrying value, beginning of year $657,547 $203,102 $3,3603,171 $4.223,820

Less: accumulated depreciation (657 5473 {150,088) (3,306,902) (4,124,537

Met carrving value, beginming of vear 53,004 46,269 99,283
Additions 425,404 24,819 1,077,397 1,597,620
Retirements (4804764 - (2,720,173) (3.200.649)
Depreciation (6,428) (22,0200 {40,045) (68, 493)
Accumulated depreciation retirements 480476 2,718.47% 3,198,955

Carrying value, end of year 602 475 97921 1,720,395 2,620,791

Less: accunulated depreciation / impairments (183,499) (172,108) (138, 468) (994,075)

Net carrving value, end of vear 5418976 S125 813 51,081, y

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Furniture and EDP Leasehald
lixtures Equipnent  Improvemenis Total

Carrving value, beginning of vear $657.547 £195,762 £3,303,781 £4.246,172

Lesa accumulated depreciation (657.547) (126,257) (3,279,655) {4,034.808)

Net carrying value, beginmng of year 6% 5035 84,126 153,631

Additions 7340 = 7,340
Retirements - {610y (o100}
Dreprecialion {23,831) (37,857 (61,688)
Agcumulated depreciation retirements - = al{ ol

Carrying value, end of yvear 657,547 203,002 3363171 4,223.820

Less: accumulated depreciation / impairments (657,547) {150,088) {3,316.902) {4,124.537)

Net carrying value, emd of year 3 553014 546,269 599,253
Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Otther assets in the Compeny Funds (MNote 2) 38,775 S108,762
Prepad assets 922 130 1,251,585
Cither assets 1,247 085 2,081,566
Taotal 52207990 53,441,914
25
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7. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Third party interests in the Company Funds (Note 2) 5584,163 S18.637,115
Secunities purchased in the Company Funds (MNote 2) 42,214 482491
Other liabilites 2,753,849 2,344,680
Taotal 53,380,226 521,471,286

8 Income Taxes
{a) The Company has current and deferred tax labilities or assets recorded on its Consolidated Balance Shects at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 In accordance with the Tax Sharing Agreement previously mentioned in Note 2,
current and deferred tax liabilities or assets related to ULS, federal and stale income taxes are reflected in the
Accounts Payable to Parent and affiliates, net. Tax receivable/(payable) for non-1U.5. subsidiaries is as follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Current tax asset - foreign 511,906 $55,028
Current tax liability - foreign (1.054,383) (B28.642)
Current tax liability, net (=1,042,477) ST5,614)
Current tax asset(liability), net, beginning of vear (5773.614) 514,790
Expenses durmg vear (1,777,158} (1,322,503}
Payments made on account 1,518,888 512,270
Other [ 10,593) 21,920
Current tax liability, net, end of year (S1LI42.37T) (5773,619)
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ib) Dieferred income taxes for non-U.S. subsidiaries consist of the following taxable temporary differences:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Drefemed compensation £171.021 £710,982
Pension cosis TE1. 139 (135,674)
MNet operating loss camy forward T64.362 1053, 591
Foreipn cumeney trans lation - 136,588
Chher 354,929 497,520
Deferred tax asset 52,071,451 52,293,007
Unrealmed securitics holding zains - {328)
Forcign cumency trans lation - (8,550
Other - 1,505
Deferred tax Hability 5- (57.352)
Balance, beginning of year L2285 625 52522 406
Amounts recorded m:

Met Loss (243.422) 181,113
Comprehens ive Loss 20,248 {417.894)
Balance, end of year 52,071,451 52,285,625

A deferred tax asset/lability has not been recognized in respect of certain investments in foreign subsidiaries,
branches and associates as the Company has no plans to liquidate these subsidiaries for the foreseeable future.

The net operating losses have expiration dates ranging from 2025 to 2027,
(2} Income tax benefit for the vear is comprised of current and deferred tax;
(1) Current tax

For the vear ended For the vear ended
December 31, 2017 Drecember 31, 2016

Current tax cxpense S1,777.158 51.322.594
Total current tax 51,777,158 $1,322,594

For the vear ended For the vear ended

(i) Deferred tax December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Crrigination and reversal of temporary difference (56,713,338) (5£.535,018)

Changes in tax rates or imposition of new laxes 62,228,567 542,981

Total deferred tax expense/{benefit) $55,515,229 (57.592,037)

Total income tax expense/{benelit) $57,292 387 (56,569,443)
27
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For the vear ended For the year ended
{11} Tax recorded in other comprehensive loss December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Deferred tax 82,232,568 (51.089.491)
Total tax recorded in other comprehensive loss 52,232,568 (51,089,491)
(d) The Company’s effective income tax rate is derived as follows:
For the vear ended For the year ended
December 31, 2017 Decernber 31, 2016
U5, Federal stamutory rafe (§1,591,619) 35000 (56, 135,089) 35,0004
Inerease (decreasa) in the meoms tax rate resulting from:
LS. state taxes - net of UL 5. federal income tax benefit (243.242) 5350 275,508 ~5.00%
Meals and entertanmient 36,701 -181% 40,507 ). 23%
Impact of foreign operations (3.046,579) 66.99% 383173 2. 1%
Share-tased compensation adj ustment 97,154 -2.14% 320,625 -1.83%
Foreign tax credits generated in prior periods - 0.00%s {2,300,752) 13.64%
U.5. Tax Reform 62,544,965 -1375.38% - 0.00%
Mon-gontrolling interest (123,604} 172% {5,290) 0.03%
Other (381,389) 8.39% 341794 -1.95%
Effective income tax rale applicable to respective year 557,292,387 -1259.85% (56,569, 443) ITATY

The Company’s todal tax expense due to Parent differs from the amount that would be caleulated by applving the
federal statutory rate primarily due to TS, tax reform and the impact of foreign operations. As of December 31,
2017, the Company docs not have any unrecognized tax benefits recorded within the tax provision due to Parent
that would affect the effective tax rate. The Company's pelicy is to include penaltics and interest related to
uncertain tax positions in its income tax provision. The Parent’s 1.5, Federal and State net operating losses are
subject to adjustment and examination for tax vears ending December 31, 2007 and thereafier.

Om December 22, 2017, HLR. 1, the Tax Reconciliation Act, was substantively enacted, The legislation, which was
generally effective for tax vears beginning on January 1, 2018, results in significant LL5. tax reform and revises the
Internal Revenue Code by, among other things, lowering the corporate federal income tax rate from 33% to 21%
and modifying how the U5, taxes multinational entitics,

The net impact of the revaluation of deferred tax balances due to the lowering of the corporate federal income fax
rate from 35% to 21% was 562,544,965 of income tax expense.

The revaluation of deferred tax balances, which are based on management’s best estimates and are included in the
LS. tax reform™, decreases the 2017 effective income tax rate by 1,375%. These estimates may require further
adjustments as additional guidance from the U.S. Department of the Treasury is provided. the Company’s
assumptions change, and as further information and interpretations become available. Changes in these estimates
will impact the 2018 consolidated financial statements.

This Act also establishes a participation exemption system for foreign income. As part of this new exemption

system. UL5. sharcholders of a specified foreign corporation must include in mcome its pro rata share of
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accumulated post-1986 deferred foreign income of the corporation. Management has reviewed this provision and
determined that a tax acerual is not required,

9. Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant interdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are described below. The
Company is responsible for and has established processes to identify all related partics and to disclose all
significant transactions involving related partics.

Accounts Pavahble to Parent and AfMiliates, net

The Company instructs third-parties to remil cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and mstructs the Parent o
disburse cash on its behalf. The receivables or pavables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets represent amounts for
which the Parent has yet to pay or receive on the Company’s behalf, The Parent also allocates certain expenses to
the Company. Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net represents the net of intercompany transactions
between the Company, the Parent and affiliates due to (1) the above mentioned receipl and payment of cash by the
Parent on its behalf (i) the recording of allocated expenses and (i) the previously described Tax Sharing
Agreement. These balances are recorded as comesponding inereases or decreases in the Member™s equity section
of the Consolidated Balance Sheets as the Company neither pays or receives. nor anticipates paying or receiving
cash related to these balances.  The gross changes in receivable and pavable for the vear related to these
transactions are disclosed separately on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as financing activities. As of
December 31, 2017 and 20106, the Company had a net intercompany pavable balance of $52.673.470 and
894434740 respectively, which is included in Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates, net in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Intercompany balances due to/{from) affiliates a5 of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 206

MNon-interest bearing, unsecured pavable(receivable)

D (from o Putnam Investments Management, LLC ("PIM™) {526,587.038) $228 504 089

Do taf from) Putnam U5, Holdings [, LLC ("PUSH %) T998T7 682 (93, H18,355)

Doue from Putnam Fiduciary Trest Company ("FFTC™) (1,255471) (39,356,200

[Due from PanAgora Asset Management, Ing. ("PAM™) - (984, 776D

D to Putnam Retail Management LP (PRM") 528,303 -
Total accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net SE2.673476 204,434,746
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Revenue and Expenses with Affiliates

A portion of the Investment advisory fees, net included in revenue on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss is attributed to institutional clients who are related parties. The total revenue and AUNM for
the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Related Party Revenue 14,079,119 812,268 830
Related Party AUM $5,683,808, 778 55,128,264,857

The receivables associated with the revenue received from related parties are 2030957 and S3,064,882 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are included in Acerued investment advisory fees recenvable on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

The Company also receives revenue from certain clients as part of a revenue sharing agreement with a minority
owner of an affiliate in which the Company provides certain services as part of the relationship. The total revenue
eamed under these agreements was S13,936,177 and $13.717.818 for the vears ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, and is recorded in Investment advisory fees, net on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss.

Total revenuve from. and expenses paid to. affiliates for the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2017 December 31, 2016

Revenue Trom affiliates
Investment advisory fees, net- Putmam [nvestments Management, LLC 811,147 416 510407611
Todal revenue fron alliliates S11,147 416 S10.407,611

Expenses paid to affiliates
Other operating expenses- Pandgora Asset Management, Ine. §337 480 $359,708
Total expenses paid to alfiliates 5337450 5309,708

Intercompany Settlement

During the vear ended December 31, 2017, the Company distributed 28693, 112 as a dividend-in-kind to the
Parent and received 5127864449 as a contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of a group-wide exercise
carried out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical intercompany balances between Putnam affiliates. The
Company’s Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates, net, Contributed surplus and Accumulated deficit were
{mpaulﬁi asa T-I.;F.llh :Jf these l:':ln:i;!c!.ilmﬁ.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent, and other subsidiaries of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 401(k) defined contribution
retivement plan (the *Plan™) covering substantially all emplovees. Under this Plan, emplovees may defer a
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percentage of dligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certain limitations, a portion of which is matched by
the Company. The Company also provides for an annual diseretionary contribution as determined by the Parent’s
Board of Directors. For the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company s share of the annual expense
to the Plan totaled 5329489 and $370.750, respectively. These amounts are included in Compensation and
benefits in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for intemnal use as long-lived assets, which are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of three vears or the estimated useful life. The amortization
expense is allocated to cach subsidiary of the Parent, by PUSH I, based on the subsidiary’s usage of cach
capitalized software project. Amortization expense allocated to the Company during the years ended Diecember 21,
2017 and 2016 was 52,114,795 and 51.769.572, respectively, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent
and affiliates, net in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Equity Incentive Com pensation

The Parent sponsors the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan. Certain employees of the Company are
eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible 1o receive restricted shares of the Parent’s Class B
common shares and Class B stock options,

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesting period and based on the
grant date fair value of the award. A portion of these expenses are allocated to the Company in a manner
consistent with the grant of such share-based payments,

The Company accounts for the awards issued under the EIP as equity awards in accordance with the IFRS 2
guidance related to share-based payment transactions among group entitics. The Company receives the services of
the employees granted the share awards, but has no obligation to settle the share awards. That obligation belongs
to the Parent.

The Company has emplovees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to the
EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair market value
of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income valuation approach as outlined in
the EIP, which includes consideration of the range of values determined by a nationally recognized independent
valuation firm chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for these awards s being amortized over the
vesting period of up to five years. Compensation expense directly charged to the Company for the yvears ended
December 31, 20017 and 2016 was S1,302,628 and 52,242,026, respectively, and is included in Compensation and
benefits in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.  Compensation expense directly
allocated to the Company for the years ended December 310 2017 and 2016 was S730.806 and 5723332
respectively, and is incleded in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in the Consolidated Statements
of Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss. As of December 31, 2017, there was $4.576.218 of unrecognized
compensation expense related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares. The weighted
average period over which that expense is expected to be recognized is 3.91 years.
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Restricted Class B Shares
For the Year Ended December 31, For the Year Ended December 31,
2017 2016
Weighted Avernge Weighted Average
Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested balance at January | 300,300 519.66 472,500 2086
Giranted 57,500 15,05 87,500 14.36
Vested (82,600 20,77 (63,7000 1994
Transferred oo of) PAC, net 11,600 19,04 {106, 0009 HhRs
Forfeited (40,5001} 19.65 - =
Unvested balance at December 31 366, 2000 518.29 350 300 31966

Key Management Com pensation

Key management of the Company includes certain executives of the Parent that have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The individuals that comprise
the key management personnel are the Board of Directors, as well as certain key management and officers. A
portion of the compensation paid to these directors and executives s allocated 1o the Company on the same basis
as the other expense allocations from the Parent and is imcluded in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates,
net on the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as follows:

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
Diecember 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Salary T4TROOE 5334, 800
Share-based compensation 026,771 1,268,374
Anniual non-share-based incentive compensation 3.2TR G643 1,684, B040
All other compensation 57,567 55,380
Total compensation £4.741.079 SS,S-U&

Allocated Expenses from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company shares office facilities, personnel and other arrangements further deseribed in this note with other
subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related costs of such arrangements have been allocated by the Parent
and by affilistes among the various subsidiaries in a manner which management believes is representative of the
actual costs incurred. This includes the costs associated with capitalized software and key management
compensation as disclosed above. Additionally, in the course of the Company’s day-to-day business operations
cerain pr;a‘!iimm;l from our subsidiaries of the Parent are ulilized 1o support the Company, the related costs of
which have been allocated to the Company, in a manner which management believes is representative of actual
costs incwred. The Company also allecates cortain of its own costs among varous affiliates in a manner which
management believes is representative of the actual costs incurred.

Dwring the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company was allocated 539,860,610 and S42.001,846 of
costs, respectively, as outlined below, These charges are ineluded in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates,
net in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, as outlined below.
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Year Ended
Drecember 31, 2016

Year Ended
December 31, 2017

General & Administrative Expense from PUSH 520,015,720 519,937 B45
Inwestment Management Expense from PIM 23172,722 23,320,059
Institutional Expense to PRM and FFTC* (71N T6) (5,103,907
Cilobal Investment Strategies Expense from PEM 1717 458 LalE 673
Marketing Expense from PRM 2064 886 2220076
Total Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net 539,860,610 S42,001 846

*= Prior year has been presented to conform 1o the current yewr presentation of including all indistional expenses in one line. This adjustment didnot
have an impact on lne items or amounts previossly reported within the consolidated fnancials stat anents

10, Other Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2016
Travel & Entertainment 51,691,473 51,909,026
Bent, net of sub-lease income 1,763,518 1,748 364
Facility maintenance S utilities 1,502,650 1,427,954
Industry dues & filing fees 698 039 505,521
Expenses paid to affilistes 337480 369,708
Advertising 249,153 229250
Oiperating expenses in the Company Funds 268 858 2129067
Insurance expense 199382 210,551
Depreciation of capital assets 68493 61,688
Shareholder services 37037 41,948
Miscellancous other operating expenses 97,7635 263,258
Total other opera linE CXPCNSES 56,913,850 56,996,335

11, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Unrealized Foreign Unrealized Gain {Laoss)
Exchange Loss on Availahle-
on Translation of For-Sale
Foreign Operations, net Investments Total
Balance, beginning of year (S10,140,902) 360,243 (59,780,659
Other comprehensive gain, net 1,531,414 386687 1,570,081
Income tax expense (2188, 705 (118} (2,188,827
Balance, end of year (S10,798,197) S398,792 (510,399 405)
33
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For the Year Ended December 31, 20016
Unrealized Foreign Unrealized Gain (Loss)
Exchange Lass on Available-
on Translation of For-Sale
Foreign Operations, nel Investments Taotal

Balance, beginning of year {57,465 549) SA00, 228 (57,065,321)

Other comprehensive loss, net (4,137,669 (39,8513 {4, 077,5200

Incams tax (expense)benelit 1,462,316 (134} 1,462,182

Balance, end of year (510,140,902) S360,243 (59, 780,639)
12. Restructuring

13,

In 2016, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $1,173.639, which is presented as Restructuring in the
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss. All amounts have been paid as of December 31, 2017,
There were no restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2017,

Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company enters into operating leases for office space used in the normal course of operations under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements. Lease payments are charged to operations over the period of use.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office space are as follows:

Fayments due by year as of December 31, 2017
Tatal 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafier

Operating Leases 311,559,628 31413258 316160568  $S16645986 51102242 5641,257  $4.821,826

Payments due by vear as of December 31, 2016
Tatal 27 2018 209 2020 2021 Thereafter
Operating Leases 32371872 S1843,678  B480,130 348,064 5- 8- 5

Total rent expense, included in Other operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss, was 81,763,518 and 51.748.364, net of sublease income of $1.510,722 and $1.550.871 for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Claims, Lawsuits, Provisions and Other Cantingencies
From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, arising in the normal course of
business. It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated

financial position of the Company.

In addition, the Company receives inquiries. including requests for documents and information, in the course of its
business from vanious state and federal regulators inguiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
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procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds to
these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory inguiries, and there are no such matters pending that the
Company believes could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or financial

[rosition.

In Movember 2009, a prospective client filed a complaint in [taly alleging that a subsidiary of the Company has
pre-contractual liability under Italian law for closing its Italian branch without informing, on a timely basis, the
prospective client after extensive negotiations had occurred on an investment mandate.  The prospective client
alleges that it was damaged because it was led to believe that a contract would be executed and the investment
mandate would begin by the end of February 2009, The plaintift sought approximately €600,000. The final hearing
ook place at the end of 2016 and a briefing to the court was concluded at the end of January 2017, In March 2017,
the court rejected the plaintiff™s claim and awarded costs and expenses to the Company, The plaintiff has appealed.
The Company deems the appeal is not probable of being successful and no contingency has been recorded.

Chther Litigation

The Company became a defendant in an action that alleges the Company violated state law by allowing another
entity to pick poor performing assets (underlying collateral) for a CDO. Claims against the Company are for
fraud, negligent misrepresentation and neghgence. The Company filed a motion to dismiss. The Company’s
motion to dismiss was granted on April 28, 2014, Litigant filed an appeal and on April 135, 2015 the Court
reversed the district court’s dismissal and remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings.  The
Company deems that the claim is not probable of being successful and ne contingency has been recorded.

14. Capital Management

The Parent monitors the amount of consolidated capital available, and the amounts deployed in its various
aperating subsidianes, mgluding the Company, The amount of capital deployed in any particular company or
country is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Parent’s internal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of its operational risks and requirements and strategic plans, The Parent’s practice is to
maintain the Company’s capitalization at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory capital
requirements in the jurisdictions in which they operate.

The Company must maintain minimum member’s equity of $1.000.000 in certain jurisdictions subject to rules
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA™). During the vears ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, the Company was in compliance with all minimum capital requirements.  In addition, certain
foreign entities are in compliance with their applicable local capital requirements.

15 Risk Management

The Company has policies relating to the identification. measurement, monitoring. mitigating and controlling of
risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are credit risk. liquidity
risk and market risk (currency, interest rate and equity). The following sections deseribe how the Company
manages each of these risks.

Management is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring the
capital plan. The Board of Directors of the Parent reviews and approves all material capital fransactions
undertaken by management.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk for financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due. The
Company regularly reviews ils credit exposure from each counterparty. The Company monitors ils credit risk
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management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness. These policies include, but are not limited to,
dealing only with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate. as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial lozz from defaults. The maximum credit exposure is the carrving value of the
assels on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, net of any allowances for losses. There are no allowances for years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come
due. The following policics and procedures are in place to manage this risk:

The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities,

The Company has the financial support of its Parent, which maintains a 300,000,000 revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks.

The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due at December 31, 2017.
The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal year.

In the normal course of business. the Company enters into contracts that give rise to commitments of future
minimum payments that impact short-term and long-term liquidity. A table in note 13 Commitments and
Contingencies summarizes the principal repayment schedule of the Company’s financial Liabilities as of
Diecember 31, 2017 and 2016,

() Market Risk

Mlarket risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market factors. Market factors include three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk, and
equity risk.

(i) Currency Risk

Curreney risk relates to the Company operating in different currencies and converting non-105. dollar
carnings at different points in time at different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in foreign
currency  exchange rates occur. The Company’s consolidated financial instruments are generally
denominated in ULS. dollars and do not have significant exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists if asset and lability cash flows are not closely matched and interest rates change
causing a difference in value between the asset and i{nhilir} The Company, through instruction from the
Parent, monitors interest rate risk by regularly assessing this risk and establishing pﬁhua‘ and practices to
profect against the adverse effects of these potential exposures, The Company’s primary exposures 1o
interest rate risk arise from fee revenue camed by the Company that is dependent on the debt portfolios of
Putnam sponsored funds. A one percent increase or decrease in the vield of these funds would have resulted
in a change in net loss of approximately $402,000 and 498,000 for the vears ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively,
(iii) Equity Risk
Equity risk 15 the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in equily markets,
The Company through instruction from the Parent has investment policy guidelines in place that provide for
prudent investment in equity markets with elearly defined limits to mitigate price risk.  The Company's
primary exposure to equity risk arises from fee revenue ecamed by the Company that is dependent on the
38
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equity portfolios of PIM sponsored funds, PAC institutional clients and sced investments. A fen percent
increase or decrease in equity markets would have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately
S1.287.000 and 51,223,000 for the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

16. Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after December 31, 2017 through June 19,
2018, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Om May 18, 2018, as part of a group-wide exercise carried out by the Company's indirect parent in order to
reassign and settle historical intercompany balances between Putnam affiliates, the Company’s net Accounts
Payable from Parent and Affiliates balance as of March 31, 2018 on the balance sheet was reduced by
898,732,744, alter receiving a capital contribution from PUSH I, with an offset to Contributed surplus.

On June 1, 2018, the Putnam group completed an internal reorganization intended to reduce complexity and costs
by simplifying accounting and reporting for Putnam’s non-1S. subsidiaries and the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. The reorganization resulted in the Company distributing all of the non-L0.5. subsidiaries to
another indirect subsidiary of the Parent as a dividend-in-kind in the amount of 349,326,538, As this transaction
was conducted among companies under common control, the non-UL 5, subsidiaries were moved at net book value
with no gain or loss on transfer recorded by the Company. The day to day management and business operations of
the Company will remain the same. The appropriate regulatory bodies of the non-17.5. subsidiaries have approved
reorganization, where required.

Coincident with the June 1, 2018 reorganization and pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 301.7701-3, the
Company elected to become a disregarded entity for the purposes of ULS. federal income tax. Generally,
disregarded entities are not subject to entity=level federal or state income taxation and, as such, the Company is not
required 1o provide for income taxes alfter June 1, 2018, The Company’s taxable income primanily becomes taxable
to the respective member, Accordingly, on June 1, 2018, the net unsettled deferred tax asset within the Accounts
payable to Parent and affiliates balance of £30,767.667 was distributed to another indirect subsidiary of Parent as a
dividend-in-kind, resulting in no impact to Member's equity.

Except as described above, the Company is not aware of any other subsequent events which would require
recogmibion or disclosure in the eonsolidated financial stalements,
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putham
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds
(Cayman) (comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position
as of April 30, 2018 and April 30, 2017, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income, of
changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the combined financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
combined financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
combined financia statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund' s preparation and fair presentation of the
combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the combined financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as of April 30, 2018 and April 30, 2017, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
August 2, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Management of
The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financia statements of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and
the related consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in member's equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Emphasis of matters

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, 8 and 9, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its &ffiliates. As a
result, these consolidated financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of
operations had the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

June 19, 2018
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